Neath Port Talbot
f,wn Castell-nedd Port Talbot AGENDA

County Borough Council Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol

PWYLLGOR PERSONEL
2.00 PM - DYDD LLUN, 24 CHWEFROR 2020

COMMITTEE ROOM 1/2 - PORT TALBOT CIVIC CENTRE

10.

11.

Rhan 1
Datganiadau o Fuddiannau
Rhagarweiniad i bolisi Gofalwr (Tudalennau 3 - 22)

Rhaglenni Prentisiaid a Phrofiad Gwaith yng Nghyngor Castell-
nedd Port Talbot (Tudalennau 23 - 28)

Cofrestru Gweithwyr Gofal Cartref (Tudalennau 29 - 40)

Cyflwyno Cynllun Cyfweliadau Gwarantedig ar gyfer Cyn-filwyr y
Lluoedd Arfog (Tudalennau 41 - 54)

Trefniadau'r Nadolig a'r Flwyddyn Newydd 2020/21 (Tudalennau
55 - 66)

Adroddiad Gwybodaeth am y Gweithlu (Tudalennau 67 - 80)
Datganiad Polisi Tal 2020/2021 (Tudalennau 81 - 154)

Cam Gweithredu Brys: Cynnydd yn y Cyfradd Wrth Gefn
(Tudalennau 155 - 170)

Eitemau brys

Unrhyw eitemau brys yn 6l disgresiwn y Cadeirydd yn unol ag Adran
100B(4)(b) o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.

Mynediad i gyfarfodydd
Yn unol ag Adran 100A(4) a (5) o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972,




gwahardd y cyhoedd o'r eitemau busnes canlynol a oedd yn cynnwys
datganiadau posib o wybodaeth eithriedig, fel a diffinnir ym Mharagraff
12 ac 15 Adran 4 Atodlen 12A y Ddeddf uchod.
Rhan 2

12. Trafodaethau Cyflog Cenedlaethol (Tudalennau 171 - 176)

13. Tal Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Plant a Phobl Ifanc (Tudalennau

177 - 188)
S.Phillips
Prif Weithredwr
Canolfan Ddinesig
Port Talbot Dydd Mawrth, 18 Chwefror 2020
Aelodaeth y Pwyllgor:
Cadeirydd: D.Jones
Is-gadeirydd: D.Cawsey
Aelodau Cynghorwyr R.G.Jones, A.J.Taylor,

S.E.Freeguard, E.V.Latham, S.Miller, S.Bamsey,
J.Hale, N.T.Hunt, S.A.Knoyle a/ac J.Jones

Aelodau nad Cynghorwyr P.D.Richards, C.Clement-Williams,
ydynt yn A.Wingrave, A.R.Lockyer, P.A.Rees a/ac L.Jones
pleidleisio:



Eitem yr Agenda2

n Cyngor Castell-nedd Port Talbot

N Neath Port Talbot Council
T

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
PERSONNEL COMMITTEE
24™ FEBRUARY 2020

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF HUMAN RESOURCES - SHEENAGH REES

Matter for Decision
Wards Affected: All wards
Introduction of a Carer’s Policy

1. Purpose of Report:

The purpose of this report is to seek Member approval to introduce a Carer’s
Policy to support employees with caring responsibilities.

2. Background:

The Council has a responsibility for the welfare of its employees and as such
recognises that some employees are carers and therefore may need extra
support whilst at work to assist them with their caring responsibilities.

Carers UK estimates that there are currently six and a half million carers in the
UK - a number that continues to rise. More than four million carers provide up
to 19 hours of unpaid care for a family member or friend each week and of
these, more than three million are still in paid work.

www.npt.gov.uk

Tudalen3



Employees do not legally have to notify their employer that they are a carer.
However, in a healthy working environment, carers are more likely to notify
someone of their responsibilities. Generally checking on an employee's
wellbeing regularly during one to ones, supervisions and/or appraisals can
encourage open dialogue with employees and provide opportunities for
employees to raise anything that may be impacting on their general wellbeing.

When an employee informs their manager that they are a carer, the manager
can take simple but effective action to enable them to balance their caring and
employment responsibilities and these actions are set out in the policy.

The policy defines carers as employees with significant caring responsibilities
that have a substantial impact on their working lives. These employees are
responsible for the care and support of disabled, elderly or sick partners,
relatives or friends who are unable to care for themselves. It distinguishes
carers from employees who have childcare responsibilities as the
requirements of a carer are more unpredictable and emotionally distressing.

3. Development of the Policy

The introduction of a Carers Policy was first discussed by the joint trade unions
at the Local Government Services Forum. The trade unions put forward a
sample policy drafted by the Employers for Carers Organisation. Using this
sample policy, the attached Carers Policy (provided in Appendix 1) was
developed and subsequently agreed by the trade unions.

4. Communication of the Policy

As this is a new policy, it is important that it is communicated widely across the
Council. We will do this by including an article in the Council’s newsletter In
The Loop, we will place it on the HR Intranet, we will send an email to all
Heads of Service requesting them to cascade details of the new policy to all
their service areas and we will also advertise the policy on the payslips to
ensure that all employees, whether they have an online payslip or a paper
payslip, are aware of the new policy.

5. Financial Impacts:

There are no financial impacts associated with this report.

2
Tudalen4



6. Integrated impact assessment:

A first stage impact assessment has been undertaken to assist the Council in
discharging its legislative duties (under the Equality Act, the Welsh Language
Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015, the Well-being of Future Generations
(Wales) Act 2015 and the Environment (Wales) Act 2016. The first stage

assessment, attached at appendix 1 has indicated that a more in-depth
assessment is not required. A summary is included below:

“A full impact is not required as there is no impact on any protected group. It
also has no negative impact on bio-diversity or the Welsh Language”.

7. Valleys Communities Impacts:

No Implications

8. Workforce Impacts:

The introduction of this policy will have a positive impact on those employees
across our workforce who are carers.

9. Legal Impacts:

No implications.

10. Risk Management Impacts:

No implications.

11. Consultation:

There is no requirement under the Constitution for external consultation on this
item. The proposed changes have been communicated with the Trade Unions
via the Local Government Services Forum who were fully supportive of the

introduction of this policy.

12. Recommendations:

3
Tudalen5



It is RECOMMENDED that Members APPROVE the introduction of the Carers
Policy.

FOR DECISION
13. Appendices:

Appendix 1 — Carers Policy
Appendix 2 — First Stage Integrated Impact Assessment

14. List of background papers:
None.

15. Officer Contact

Sheenagh Rees, Head of Human Resources, Email: s.reesS5@npt.gov.uk or
tel. 01639 763315.

4
Tudalen6


mailto:s.rees5@npt.gov.uk

u Cyngor Castell-nedd Port Talbot
W Neath Port Talbot Council
~

Polisi Gofalwyr
Carers Policy

Polisi Gofalwyr
Carer’s Policy

Version Date Action

1 23" February 2020 New Policy
2

3

www.npt.gov.uk

Tudalen7



1.

Policy Statement

Neath Port Talbot Council recognizes and understands that some employees
may find it difficult to combine work and caring and this policy sets out what
support the Council offers to enable employees to do this.

Definition of a Carer

Neath Port Talbot Council defines a carer as employees with significant caring
responsibilities that have a substantial impact on their working lives. These
employees are responsible for the care and support of disabled, elderly or sick
partners, relatives or friends who are unable to care for themselves. The
activities that carers undertake are wide ranging, including help with personal
care; help with mobility; managing medication; practical household tasks;
emotional support; and help with financial matters or paperwork.

For the purpose of this policy the needs of carers are different to those
employees with mainstream childcare issues. Caring can be unpredictable and
emotionally upsetting; it can happen overnight, for example if an employee’s
parent has a stroke, or it can creep up on someone, for example if their
partner develops a debilitating long term health condition. It is not like
mainstream childcare as its circumstances and milestones are different and
often more uncertain.

For example, with mainstream childcare, the child’s journey is more
predictable as he or she grows older, goes through schooling and becomes
more independent. With caring, the milestones can be very different and go in
the opposite direction; for example, an elderly parent becoming more frail and
dependant or a disabled child continuing to have high support needs as they
become an adult. It is also much easier (and often more acceptable) to talk
about childcare in the workplace than it is to discuss caring for a parent with
dementia or a partner with a disability, for example.

. Commitment to supporting carers

The Council recognises that some people have caring responsibilities and that
carers will constitute a part of its workforce. It also recognises that some
employees may find it difficult to combine work and caring. We have,
therefore, adopted the following code of good practice in order to support
employees who are, or who are likely to become carers.

Tudalgn8



We believe that carers should have the same opportunity to obtain a job within
the organisation and keep their job as everyone else and is committed to
providing as much support as is reasonably practicable.

Identification and disclosure

Over two million people in the UK become carers every year and around the
same number of people cease caring; carers are therefore not a static group
and the same will be true within any workplace. The Council therefore
acknowledges that it needs to strike a balance between recognising the
special circumstances of caring and not classifying carers as a rigid or
separate group as it will be a group whose members, and needs, will be
constantly changing.

Employees may not recognise themselves as carers, for example employees
who are caring at a distance - ie supporting someone such as an elderly
parent who does not live with them — may be less likely to consider
themselves as a carer.

Employees are not obliged to disclose to their line manager that they are
caring for someone but are actively encouraged to do so. All line managers
should ask whether staff they are supervising have caring responsibilities, and
should have due regard to issues of confidentiality concerning this information.

Employees who don'’t feel able to disclose this information to their line
manager can approach their trade union representative or HR Officer.

Once the carer has been identified the line manager should ensure that they
are aware of and feel able to access the range of support the Council offers.

Flexible Working

All employees with caring responsibilities are entitled to request to work
flexibly in order to attend to the needs of the individual whom they care for.

The Council offers various types of flexible working:

e Flexi-time. Employees are required to work within set times but outside of
these ‘core hours’ have some flexibility in how they work their hours.

e Home working / mobile working. Employees spend part of their working
week away from the workplace.

e Job sharing. Usually two employees share the work normally done by one
person.

Tudalen9



e Reduced hours working. Employees might work shorter days or fewer
days in a week.

e Term-time working. Employees don’t work during school holidays and
either take paid or unpaid leave or their salary is calculated pro-rata over
the whole year.

e Compressed hours. Employees work their total hours over fewer working
days eg a ten day fortnight is compressed into a nine day fortnight.

Employees who have worked for the Council for at least 26 weeks can make a
request for flexible working. If agreed it would result in a permanent change to
their terms and conditions. Only one request is allowed in a year. The Council
can refuse a request, but will give the employee good business reasons from a
specific list which is set out in the Flexible Working Policy. Employees can
appeal against this decision. For further information, please refer to the
Flexible Working Policy on the HR Intranet.

Line managers should also consider informal arrangements such as use of a
telephone, or private time/space to make calls, at work, in connection with
their role as a carer.

Crisis situations

The Council recognises that employees with caring responsibilities are not
always able to plan ahead - accidents or illnesses can occur without warning
and care arrangements can break down unexpectedly. Emergency leave is
therefore important to carers, who can be called home at short notice on such
occasions. All carers are entitled to take time off in order to attend to the
sudden needs of the individual whom they care for.

All employees have a statutory right to take “reasonable time off” to deal with
unexpected situations involving a dependant. Employees must inform their line
manager as soon as possible after the emergency has happened.

A dependant includes an employees’ husband, wife or partner, child or parent,
or someone living with them as part of their family. Others who rely on them
for help in an emergency may also qualify.

The situations where emergency leave might be taken are:
e adisruption or breakdown in care arrangements
e when a dependant falls ill, has been assaulted or in an accident
(including when the person is hurt or upset rather than physically injured)

Tudalep10



e to make longer term arrangements for a dependant who is ill or injured
(but not to provide long term care themselves)

¢ to deal with an incident involving a child during school hours

¢ to deal with the death of a dependant.

7. Carers Leave

The Council acknowledges that employees with caring commitments may
need time off to deal with medical appointments/discharge from hospital etc.

Employees should discuss with line managers, in advance, any leave which
they can reasonably expect to need for their caring commitments so that
managers and the other members of the team can plan work, meetings and
other leave around those dates.

Some types of medical appointments can be booked in advance and carers
are expected to book these at the start or end of the working day, to minimise
disruption at work. With prior approval, time off for planned appointments can
normally be made up later, taken as flexi or annual leave.

The Council acknowledges that employees with caring responsibilities may
need flexible leave arrangements as well as flexible working arrangements in
order to manage all aspects of their caring role. It therefore provides the
following options which should be discussed with the line manager:-:

Parental Leave

Time off for dependants

Additional Annual Leave Purchase Scheme
Career breaks

8. Other support for carers

All employees with caring responsibilities are entitled to use their telephone at
work, in private, in connection with their role as a carer.

Information about external sources of support is also available, please see
below:-

Carers UK - https://www.carersuk.org/wales

Dewis Cymru - https://www.dewis.wales/support-for-carers

Tudalenl1


file://msastore/chex$/Transformation%20Documents/Project%20Plan%20Diane/LGS/26th%20September%202019/Carers%20UK%20-%20https:/www.carersuk.org/wales
https://www.dewis.wales/support-for-carers

NHS Direct Wales - https://www.nhsdirect.wales.nhs.uk/livewell/carers/

Carers Trust Wales - https://carers.org/country/carers-trust-wales-cymru

9. Role of line managers

Managers, especially line managers, are the gatekeepers to this policy and
play a key role in its implementation. The Council recognises that each carer’s
situation is different and may require a different response from the manager,
taking into account the whole range of organisational support available.

Employees need to feel able to take up these policies without feeling that they
might be treated less favourably. Managers can help by creating an open
workplace culture that is supportive to carers.

Creating a workplace culture that is supportive to carers also requires the
endorsement of top-level management. This Policy has been approved by the
Council’s Personnel Committee on

10. Review

This policy will be reviewed in two years, following changes in legislation or as
a result of operational issues.

Neath Port Talbot Council understands the difficulty that some carers face and
is committed to providing as much support as is reasonably practicable.

The Council welcomes comments and suggestions from all staff on how the
organisation may further improve the working environment so that it is better
equipped to deal with the varying needs of carers in the workforce.

Tudalegpl2


https://www.nhsdirect.wales.nhs.uk/livewell/carers/
https://carers.org/country/carers-trust-wales-cymru

Law relating to this document
Leading statutory authority

Work and Families Act 2006

Equality Act 2010

The Employment Rights Act 1996

Employment Relations Act 1999

Since April 2007 the Work and Families Act 2006 (The Work and Families
(Northern Ireland) Order 2006 in Northern Ireland) has given carers, as well as
parents, the right to request flexible working such as changing hours or
working from home.

The Act currently defines a carer as someone who cares for, or expects to
care for, a spouse or partner, a relative such as a child, uncle, sister, parent-
in-law, son-in-law or grandparent, or an adult who is not a relative but lives at
the same address as the carer. Under the National Carers Strategy, published
in June 2008, there was a government commitment to review the definition of
‘carer’ in the Flexible Working Regulations to consider extending it to the 20%
of carers who currently miss out. These are carers who are not a close relation
of the person they care for or who do not live with them. Evidence shows that
most employers are open to requests from people not currently eligible under
the new law, such as those that care for, say, an elderly neighbour.

This policy goes beyond what the law requires in offering the right to request
flexible working to all employees with caring responsibilities.

Protection from discrimination

If an employee is looking after someone who is elderly or disabled, the law —
under the Equality Act 2010 — will protect them against direct discrimination or
harassment because of their caring responsibilities. This is because they are
counted as being ‘associated’ with someone who is protected by the law
because of their age or disability. Employers need to ensure that they do not
discriminate against employees with caring responsibilities. Direct
discrimination is where an employee is treated less favourably than someone
else because they are caring for an elderly or disabled person. Examples of
this could include someone being refused a job because of their caring
responsibilities or an employee not being offered a promotion because of their
caring responsibilities.

Tudalen13



Mae'r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



gTusepnL

Impact Assessment - First Stage

It is essential that all initiatives undergo a first stage impact assessment to identify relevance to equalities and the Welsh language
as well as an evaluation of how the proposal has taken into account the sustainable development principle (the five ways of
working); an incorrect assessment could ultimately be open to legal challenge.

The first stage is to carry out a short assessment to help determine the need to undertake a more in-depth analysis (the second
stage).

Relevance will depend not only on the number of people/service users affected, but also the significance of the effect on them.
When completing the first step you must have regard to the following:

o Does the initiative relate to an area where important equality issues have been, or are likely to be, raised? (For example,
funding for services to assist people who are victims of rape/sexual violence or individuals with particular care need; disabled
people's access to public transport; the gender pay gap; racist or homophobic bullying in schools)

« |s there a significant potential for reducing inequalities, or improving outcomes? (For example, increasing recruitment
opportunities for disabled people).

o Does the initiative relate to instances where opportunities to use the Welsh language are likely to be affected or where the
language is likely to be treated less favourably? (For example, increase the number of Welsh speakers moving from/to a
certain area; closing specific Welsh language services or put those services at risk services;

« Does the initiative relate to the improvement of economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being? To what extent
does the initiative prevent things getting worse? (For example, funding for services to assist in cultural well-being; changes
in polices that promote independence and/or assist carers)

. Provide a description and summary of the initiative.

Identify which service area and directorate has responsibility for the initiative.

. Identify who will be affected by the initiative.

If you answer Yes to service users, staff or wider community continue with the first stage of the assessment
If you answer No to service users, staff or wider community or Yes to ‘Internal administrative process only’, go to Question 5 —
sustainable development principle.

. Using relevant and appropriate information and data that is available to you think about what impact there could be on people who

share protected characteristics; whether they are service users, staff or the wider community.

1



gTuaEpNL

Some things to consider include:

transport issues
accessibility
customer service
cultural sensitivity
financial implications
loss of jobs

Definitions of impacts (either positive or negative):

High — likely to be highly affected by the initiative
Medium - likely to be affected in some way

Low - likely to be affected by the initiative in a small way
Don’t know - the potential impact is unknown

You must provide reasons, and indicate what evidence you used, in coming to your decision.

. Using relevant and appropriate information and data that is available, think about what impact there could be on opportunities to
use the Welsh language and in treating the language no less favourably than English.

Definitions of impacts are the same as in Question 3.
The classification ‘Don’t Know’ should be categorised as ‘High Impact’ in both questions 3 & 4.

. Consider how the initiative has embraced the sustainable development principle in accordance with the Section 7c¢ of the Well-
being of Future Generations Act 2015.

Give details of the initiative in relation to the 5 ways of working:
e Long term - how the initiative supports the long term well-being of people
¢ Integration - how the initiative impacts upon our wellbeing objectives
¢ Involvement - how people have been involved in developing the initiative
e Collaboration - how we have worked with other services/organisations to find shared sustainable solutions;
¢ Prevention - how the initiative will prevent problems occurring or getting worse

2



/Tuaepn

6. The most appropriate statement must be selected (and the relevant box ticked) based on the first stage of the assessment and an
explanation of how you have arrived at this decision must be given.

In addition a summary of the how the initiative has embraced the sustainable development principle must also be included.

Where the first stage of the assessment indicates that a more in-depth analysis is required the second stage of the assessment will
need to be completed and this will need to be started immediately.

A first stage assessment must be included as a background paper for all Cabinet/Cabinet Board/ Scrutiny Committee Reports.

Where the first stage assessment is completed by an accountable manager it must be signed off by a Head of Service/Director.



gTuaepn L

1. Details of the initiative

Impact Assessment - First Stage

Initiative description and summary: Introduction of a Carer’s Policy

powers

Service Area: All Council Employees other than those employed directly by School’s operating under fully delegated

Directorate: All

2. Does the initiative affect:

Yes No

Service users X

Staff X

Wider community X

Internal administrative process only X

3. Does the initiative impact on people because of their:
Yes | No | None/ Don’t | Impact | Reasons for your decision (including evidence)/How
Negligible | Know | H/M/L | might it impact?

Age X
Disability X
Gender Reassignment X
Marriage/Civil Partnership X
Pregnancy/Maternity X
Race X
Religion/Belief X
Sex X




6TUSEPN L

Sexual orientation

4. Does the initiative impact on:

Yes | No | None/ Don’t | Impact | Reasons for your decision (including evidence used) /
Negligible | know | H/M/L | How might it impact?
People’s opportunities X
to use the Welsh
language
Treating the Welsh X
language no less
favourably than English
5. Does the initiative impact on biodiversity:
Yes | No | None/ Don’t | Impact | Reasons for your decision (including evidence) /
Negligible | know | H/M/L | How might it impact?
To maintain and X
enhance biodiversity
To promote the
resilience of X

ecosystems, i.e.
supporting protection of

the wider environment,




OcuajepnL

such as air quality, flood
alleviation, etc.

6. Does the initiative embrace the sustainable development principle (5 ways of working):

Yes | No Details
Long term - how the initiative X Introducing a Carers Policy will support our employees who have caring
supports the long term well-being of responsibilities and also the people they care for. This should enhance
people their long term well-being.
Integration - how the initiative X As above. The introduction of the Carers Policy will be an aid to ensuring
impacts upon our wellbeing the wellbeing objectives are met.
objectives
Involvement - how people have X A sample Carers Policy by the Employers for Carers Organisation was
been involved in developing the provided by the trade unions which was developed into a NPT Policy. The
initiative Council’s Joint Trade Unions have also been consulted with. All parties

have been extremely supportive of the proposed changes.

Collaboration - how we have worked X N/A — this is a Neath Port Talbot Council Policy.
with other services/organisations to
find shared sustainable solutions
Prevention - how the initiative will X It will enhance our current suite of policies which are in place to support

prevent problems occurring or getting
worse

employees across the Council.




Tguafepn

7. Declaration - based on above assessment (tick as appropriate):

A full impact assessment (second stage) is not required

Reasons for this conclusion

A full impact is not required as there is no impact on any protected group.
It also has no negative impact on bio-diversity or the Welsh Language.

A full impact assessment (second stage) is required

Reasons for this conclusion




¢cuarepn|

Name Position Signature Date
Completed by Diane Hopkins Principal HR Manager D B Hopkins 3/2/20
Signed off by Sheenagh Rees Head of Service/Director :}QJQ(Q@Q <= ¢ | 14/02/20




Eitem yr Agenda3

u Cyngor Castell-nedd Port Talbot

N Neath Port Talbot Council
-

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNCIL
PERSONNEL COMMITTEE

24™ FEBRUARY 2020
REPORT OF THE HEAD OF HUMAN RESOURCES - S. REES

Matter for Information

Wards Affected:
All Wards

Report Title:
Apprentice and Work Experience Programmes within Neath Port Talbot Council

Purpose of the Report:

To provide Members with information about Apprentice and Work Experience
Programmes.

Executive Summary
The report outlines for Members the activity that is taking place across the

Council in support of our Apprentice and Work experience programmes, provided
and facilitated by the Learning, Training and Development team.

Background:

The Welsh Government has set out a vision for addressing the needs of the
Welsh economy by developing opportunities for young people and adults to
engage in work experience or apprenticeship programmes. The Council’s
Workforce Plan 2018-2022 sets out the priority to “improve access, equality and

Tudalen23



equity of opportunity, through supporting people into employment who are new to
the workplace and focusing on progression in the workplace”.

Apprenticeships

Apprenticeships offer a work-based route for learners across a wide range of
sectors and activities.

These can be accessed in two ways

Foundation Apprentice - The Foundation Apprentice is usually not
employed by the Local Authority; their pay is in line with National Living
Wage provisions. There is a requirement to attend college usually one
day per week (off the job training) whilst working towards a Level 2
qualification relevant to their job role. The duration of the Foundation
Apprenticeship is between 12 — 18 months.

Modern Apprentice - This apprenticeship is classed as employed by the
Council and pay is line with the Council’s pay and grading system. They
will also attend a college, usually one day per week, (off the job training)
whilst working towards a Level 2/3 qualification relevant to their job role.
The usual length of a Modern Apprenticeship is 2/3 years (although this
may be longer for some trades, for example civil engineer).The funding for
the qualifications is accessed via a Training Provider (e.g. Neath Port
Talbot Colleges) and there is no financial cost to the Local Authority for the
training.

Current Position

Since 2016 the Council has supported 55 apprentices:

All Now in permanent

Apprentice employment following

Placements completion of Current
Directorate since 2016 apprenticeship Apprentices
Chief Executives 7 0 6~
Social Services Health & Housing 11 5 6
Finance & Corporate 5 2 3
Environment 23 8 14 *
Education Leisure & Lifelong Learning 9 2 7
Total 55 17 36

Tudalen24




The above table shows that out of a total of 55 Apprentices as follows:

e 17 secured permanent employment with the Council on completion of their
apprenticeship.

e 36 continue to be supported to complete their programmes.

e 2 Modern Apprentices left the Council on completion of their Apprentice
programme.

Traineeships

Traineeships are the start of an individual’s learning journey. On completion of a
traineeship, they can progress onto a Foundation apprenticeship, and then onto
a Modern Apprentice programme. Traineeships are for individuals of 18 years
old and under, and not in full time education.

The Council supports Traineeships as paid placements from external training
agencies, for example, NPT College, Pathways or Peoples Plus.

To begin with, an individual will commence a placement over 3 days for a total of
21 hours. This will then increase to support the individual to achieve the relevant
level 1 qualification over a period of 12 months.

Work Experience

The Council offers a range of work experiences for young people and adults. For
example, young people who are still at school, or young adults, can access work
experience via programmes such as the Duke of Edinburgh Award or Welsh
Baccalaureate.

Since April 2019 the Council has hosted 36 work experience placements. 32
were pupils from local secondary schools. 20 came to the Council via the Duke
of Edinburgh award programme and were hosted by the library service, and 12
were hosted work experience placements supported by the Environment and
Social Services Directorates.

Channel to Work

This programme supports young people aged 14 to 25 who are living in foster
care or care leavers, into gaining all skills necessary to lead an independent and

Tudalen25



full life. It aims to help our young people to increase their soft skills such as
confidence building and to raise aspirations for their future whilst undertaking
work experience in a safe and supportive environment. Placements have been
supported in Social Services Health and Housing, Chief Executives and
Environment.

Funded programmes for employees

The Learning, Training and Development team access external funding streams
to support the development of existing employees and to enable them to gain
qualifications. Funding is available that enables employees to undertake
qualification/s relevant to their role and responsibilities e.g Diploma and NVQ
Qualifications from Levels 2 to 5.

Currently we have 60 employees that have accessed qualifications that are fully
funded by Welsh Government via Neath College or other specialist training
provider’'s e.g Talk Training.

NPT Talk Number of

Qualifications College Training staff
Business Administration 9 2 11
Management 2 21 23
Customer Services 1 0 1
Hospitality and Catering 13 0 13
Construction 4 0 4
Clinical Healthcare 1 P 1
Childcare Management 2 P 2
Accountancy 3 P 3
Project Management 0 2 2
Total 35 25 60

Forward work programme

The Learning, Training and Development Team will continue to support
apprenticeship and work experience programmes in line with the commitment set
out in the Council's Workforce Plan, supporting people into employment,
supporting those who are new to the workplace, and focusing on developing
existing staff.

Tudalen26



Financial Impacts:

No implications

Valleys Communities Impacts:
No implications
Integrated Impact Assessment:

This matter is for information and monitoring purposes only and therefore does
not require an lIA.

Workforce Impacts:

This report sets out actions that form part of the Council’'s approach to
succession planning — developing both and current and the future workforce.

Legal Impacts:

No implications

Consultation:

There is no requirement for external consultation on this item.
Officer Contacts:

Sheenagh Rees, Head of HR, email: s.rees5@npt.gov.uk or telephone 01639
763315

Lynne Doyle, Learning, Training and Development Manager, email:
l.doyle@npt.gov.uk or telephone 01639 685279.

Tudalen27


mailto:s.rees5@npt.gov.uk
mailto:l.doyle@npt.gov.uk

Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



Eitem yr Agenda4

n Cyngor Castell-nedd Port Talbot

N Neath Port Talbot Council
T

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
PERSONNEL COMMITTEE
24™ FEBRUARY 2020

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF HUMAN RESOURCES - SHEENAGH REES

Matter for Decision
Wards Affected: All wards
Registration of Domiciliary Care Workers

1. Purpose of Report:

The purpose of this report is to ask Members to approve reimbursement to
Domiciliary Care Workers for payment of 50 percent of their registration fee,
set at £20.00 per registrant, for all registrations completed by the mandatory
Social Care Wales deadline of 15t April 2020. This is a ‘one-off’ payment and
will not apply to any registrations that take place after the 1st April 2020.

2. Background:

From 1st April 2020, under the Regulation and Inspection Act 2016 and the
Registration Rules 2018 the requirement for Social Care Workers to be
registered with Social Care Wales (SCW) has been extended to Domiciliary
Care Workers.

Registration for all Domiciliary Care Workers by 15t April 2020 is mandatory.
This means that in order to work as a Domiciliary Care Worker in Wales, a
person must be registered with (SCW) by this date.

www.npt.gov.uk

Tudalen29



The regqister is a list of people who have shown they are suitable to work in
social care. Everyone on the register must show they are:

e Appropriately qualified

e Are physically and mentally fit to practice

e Have the character and competence

e Following the Code of Professional Practice for Social Care (the Code)
and practice guidance for their role

¢ Intend to practice social care in Wales

e Will practice in the field their application relates to their application for
registration.

3. Payment of the Registration Fee

The current fee for a Domiciliary Care Worker to register with SCW is £20.00.
This will increase to £35 by April 2022. It is the employee’s responsibility to
register and prove they are suitable to work in their field.

4. Neath Port Talbot’s Position

Whilst there is sympathy with Domiciliary Care Workers, Neath Port Talbot
Council does not have a contractual obligation to reimburse statutory
registration fees. The Council does reimburse the cost of statutory registration
fees paid by some employee groups. However, a 2016 joint review with the
trade unions into registration fees concluded that it would not reimburse the
cost of registration fees that may apply to any additional groups of employees
in future.

Despite this agreement, the trade unions have formally requested the Council
consider paying the fee for Domiciliary Care Workers for one year on the basis
that this is a predominantly female, part-time workforce.

5. Proposal:

The offer is to reimburse Domiciliary Care Workers with 50 percent of the
registration fee, set at £20.00 per registrant, for all registrations completed by

2
Tudalen30



the SCW 1st April 2020 mandatory registration deadline. Reimbursement will
be provided upon receipt of proof of registration and payment.

The offer is subject to the following points:

e This does not include any registrations or renewal fees after 15t April
2020.

e This offer does not create a precedent should further employee groups
become subiject to statutory registration in the future, or where current
registration arrangements change e.g. a fees increase. The offer is also
made on the basis that there is no commitment from the Council to
extend reimbursement beyond 15t April 2020.

e No further review of statutory registration fees across the Council will be
undertaken.

The Chair of the LGS Joint Trade Unions has accepted this offer, subject to
Member approval.

6. Financial Impacts:
The one year cost of reimbursing £10.00 per registrant is approximately £2k.
7. Integrated impact assessment:

A first stage impact assessment has been undertaken to assist the Council in
discharging its legislative duties (under the Equality Act, the Welsh Language
Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015, the Well-being of Future Generations
(Wales) Act 2015 and the Environment (Wales) Act 2016. The first stage
assessment, attached at appendix 2 has indicated that a more in-depth
assessment is not required. A summary is included below:

“A full impact is not required as there is no impact on any protected group. It
also has no negative impact on bio-diversity or the Welsh Language”.

8. Valleys Communities Impacts:

No Implications

3
Tudalen31



9. Workforce Impacts:

This will have a positive impact on a group that are currently expecting to pay
the full registration fee themselves.

10. Legal Impacts:

No implications.

11. Risk Management Impacts:
No risks identified.

12. Consultation:

There is no requirement under the Constitution for external consultation on this
item.

13. Recommendations:

Itis RECOMMENDED that Member's APPROVE reimbursement to Domiciliary
Care Workers for payment of 50 percent of the registration fee, set at £20.00
per registrant, for all registrations completed within the mandatory Social Care
Wales deadline of 1st April 2020.

14. Appendices:

Appendix 1 — First Stage Integrated Impact Assessment.

15. List of background papers:

None.

16. Officer Contact

Sheenagh Rees, Head of Human Resources,
Email: s.reesS@npt.gov.uk or tel. 01639 763315.

4
Tudalen32


mailto:s.rees5@npt.gov.uk

geusepn L

Impact Assessment - First Stage

It is essential that all initiatives undergo a first stage impact assessment to identify relevance to equalities and the Welsh language
as well as an evaluation of how the proposal has taken into account the sustainable development principle (the five ways of
working); an incorrect assessment could ultimately be open to legal challenge.

The first stage is to carry out a short assessment to help determine the need to undertake a more in-depth analysis (the second
stage).

Relevance will depend not only on the number of people/service users affected, but also the significance of the effect on them.
When completing the first step you must have regard to the following:

o Does the initiative relate to an area where important equality issues have been, or are likely to be, raised? (For example,
funding for services to assist people who are victims of rape/sexual violence or individuals with particular care need; disabled
people's access to public transport; the gender pay gap; racist or homophobic bullying in schools)

« |s there a significant potential for reducing inequalities, or improving outcomes? (For example, increasing recruitment
opportunities for disabled people).

o Does the initiative relate to instances where opportunities to use the Welsh language are likely to be affected or where the
language is likely to be treated less favourably? (For example, increase the number of Welsh speakers moving from/to a
certain area; closing specific Welsh language services or put those services at risk services;

« Does the initiative relate to the improvement of economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being? To what extent
does the initiative prevent things getting worse? (For example, funding for services to assist in cultural well-being; changes
in polices that promote independence and/or assist carers)

. Provide a description and summary of the initiative.

Identify which service area and directorate has responsibility for the initiative.

. Identify who will be affected by the initiative.

If you answer Yes to service users, staff or wider community continue with the first stage of the assessment
If you answer No to service users, staff or wider community or Yes to ‘Internal administrative process only’, go to Question 5 —
sustainable development principle.

. Using relevant and appropriate information and data that is available to you think about what impact there could be on people who

share protected characteristics; whether they are service users, staff or the wider community.

1



yeusfepn L

Some things to consider include:

transport issues
accessibility
customer service
cultural sensitivity
financial implications
loss of jobs

Definitions of impacts (either positive or negative):

High — likely to be highly affected by the initiative
Medium - likely to be affected in some way

Low - likely to be affected by the initiative in a small way
Don’t know - the potential impact is unknown

You must provide reasons, and indicate what evidence you used, in coming to your decision.

. Using relevant and appropriate information and data that is available, think about what impact there could be on opportunities to
use the Welsh language and in treating the language no less favourably than English.

Definitions of impacts are the same as in Question 3.
The classification ‘Don’t Know’ should be categorised as ‘High Impact’ in both questions 3 & 4.

. Consider how the initiative has embraced the sustainable development principle in accordance with the Section 7c¢ of the Well-
being of Future Generations Act 2015.

Give details of the initiative in relation to the 5 ways of working:
e Long term - how the initiative supports the long term well-being of people
¢ Integration - how the initiative impacts upon our wellbeing objectives
¢ Involvement - how people have been involved in developing the initiative
e Collaboration - how we have worked with other services/organisations to find shared sustainable solutions;
¢ Prevention - how the initiative will prevent problems occurring or getting worse

2



geusjepnL

6. The most appropriate statement must be selected (and the relevant box ticked) based on the first stage of the assessment and an
explanation of how you have arrived at this decision must be given.

In addition a summary of the how the initiative has embraced the sustainable development principle must also be included.

Where the first stage of the assessment indicates that a more in-depth analysis is required the second stage of the assessment will
need to be completed and this will need to be started immediately.

A first stage assessment must be included as a background paper for all Cabinet/Cabinet Board/ Scrutiny Committee Reports.

Where the first stage assessment is completed by an accountable manager it must be signed off by a Head of Service/Director.



gguslepn L

1. Details of the initiative

Impact Assessment - First Stage

fees.

Initiative description and summary: Seek member approval to reimburse Domiciliary Care Worker registration

Service Area: Adult Services

Directorate: Social Services, Health and Housing

2. Does the initiative affect:

Yes No
Service users X
Staff X X
Wider community X
Internal administrative process only X

3. Does the initiative impact on people because of their:

Yes

No

None/
Negligible

Don’t
Know

Impact
H/M/L

Reasons for your decision (including evidence)/How
might it impact?

Age

Disability

Gender Reassignment

Marriage/Civil Partnership

Pregnancy/Maternity

Race

Religion/Belief

Sex

XXX | X[ X|[X]|X|X




LEuarepn]

Sexual orientation

4. Does the initiative impact on:

Yes | No | None/ Don’t | Impact | Reasons for your decision (including evidence used) /
Negligible | know | H/M/L | How might it impact?
People’s opportunities X
to use the Welsh
language
Treating the Welsh X
language no less
favourably than English
5. Does the initiative impact on biodiversity:
Yes | No | None/ Don’t | Impact | Reasons for your decision (including evidence) /
Negligible | know | H/M/L | How might it impact?
To maintain and X
enhance biodiversity
To promote the
resilience of X

ecosystems, i.e.
supporting protection of

the wider environment,




geuajepn

such as air quality, flood
alleviation, etc.

6. Does the initiative embrace the sustainable development principle (5 ways of working):

Yes | No Details
Long term - how the initiative X N/A
supports the long term well-being of
people
Integration - how the initiative X N/A
impacts upon our wellbeing
objectives
Involvement - how people have X N/A
been involved in developing the
initiative
Collaboration - how we have worked X N/A
with other services/organisations to
find shared sustainable solutions
Prevention - how the initiative will X N/A

prevent problems occurring or getting
worse




6EUsepn L

7. Declaration - based on above assessment (tick as appropriate):

A full impact assessment (second stage) is not required

Reasons for this conclusion

A full impact is not required as there is no impact on any protected group.
It also has no negative impact on bio-diversity or the Welsh Language.

A full impact assessment (second stage) is required

Reasons for this conclusion




OovusjepnL

Name Position Signature Date
Completed by Tom Owen HR Manager 14/02/20
Signed off by Sheenagh Rees Head of Service/Director :EQ%Q@Q < > | 14/02/20




Eitem yr Agenda5

n Cyngor Castell-nedd Port Talbot

N Neath Port Talbot Council
T

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
PERSONNEL COMMITTEE
24™ FEBRUARY 2020

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF HUMAN RESOURCES - SHEENAGH REES

Matter for Decision
Wards Affected: All wards

Introduction of Guaranteed Interview Scheme for Veterans of the Armed
Forces

1. Purpose of Report:

The purpose of this report is to seek Member approval to introduce a
Guaranteed Interview Scheme for Veterans of the Armed Forces.

2. Background:

The Council received a letter on behalf of Darren Millar, Clwyd West AM and
the Chair of the Cross Party Group on Armed Forces and Cadets in relation to
introducing a Guaranteed Interview Scheme for veterans of the armed forces,
(attached as Appendix 1). Mr Millar lobbied the First Minister to introduce a
Guaranteed Interview Scheme in the Welsh Government and following this has
encouraged local authorities in the Wales to follow suit and introduce a
Scheme.

www.npt.gov.uk

Tudalen41l



In a press release, Mr Millar said that many veterans face difficulty in trying
to access employment once they have left their time in the military and
guaranteed interviews are one way of helping them overcome the barrier
they face. In the United States, there are guaranteed interviews with
some public sector employers so that veterans have the opportunity to at
least present themselves directly to an employer, and these have proved
to be very successful in assisting veterans in their transition back to
civilian life.

As a result of this, as a Council, we are seeking approval to adopt a
Guaranteed Interview Scheme for Armed Forces Veterans.

3. Amendments to Policies

In order to qualify for a guaranteed interview, the candidate must meet all the
essential criteria for the post, be currently serving in the armed forces and
within 12 weeks of the discharge date, or have the armed forces as the last
long term employer, with no more than 3 years lapsed since the discharge
date.

The Council’s Recruitment and Selection Policy has been amended to reflect
the Guaranteed Interview Scheme. In addition to this, the corporate
application form has an option for veterans to tick that they are claiming a
guaranteed interview. The Council’s website also has information on the
Guaranteed Interview Scheme on the front page of the jobs pages.

4. Financial Impacts:

There are no financial impacts associated with this report.

5. Integrated impact assessment:

A first stage impact assessment has been undertaken to assist the Council in
discharging its legislative duties (under the Equality Act, the Welsh Language
Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015, the Well-being of Future Generations
(Wales) Act 2015 and the Environment (Wales) Act 2016. The first stage

assessment, attached at appendix 1 has indicated that a more in-depth
assessment is not required. A summary is included below:

2
Tudalen4?2



“A full impact is not required as there is no impact on any protected group. It
also has no negative impact on bio-diversity or the Welsh Language”.

6. Valleys Communities Impacts:
No Implications

7. Workforce Impacts:

The introduction of this guaranteed interview scheme will have a positive
impact on potential applicants and will reflect positively on the Council as an
employer.

8. Legal Impacts:

No implications.

9. Risk Management Impacts:

No implications.

10. Consultation:

There is no requirement under the Constitution for external consultation on this
item. The proposal has been communicated with the Trade Unions via the
Local Government Services Forum who were fully supportive of the initiative.

11. Recommendations:

It is RECOMMENDED that Members APPROVE the introduction of a
Guaranteed Interview Scheme for Veterans of the Armed Forces.

FOR DECISION
12. Appendices:

Appendix 1 — Letter from Darren Millar, AM
Appendix 2 — First Stage Integrated Impact Assessment

3
Tudalen43



13. List of background papers:
None.

14. Officer Contact

Sheenagh Rees, Head of Human Resources, Email: s.reesS@npt.gov.uk or
tel. 01639 763315.

4
Tudalen44


mailto:s.rees5@npt.gov.uk

2

Darren Millar
Aelod Cynulliad dros Gorllewin Clwyd
Assembly Member for Clwyd West

Cllr Rob Jones

Neath Port Talbot Council
Civic Centre

Port Talbot

SA13 1P)

5 August 2019

Dear Clir Rob Jones,

Re: Guaranteed Interview Scheme for Veterans

The National Assembly for Wales' Cross-Party Group on Armed Forces and Cadets recently
held a discussion on transition services for military personnel leaving the Armed Forces.

The group wrote to the First Minister in February to ask what consideration the Welsh
Government had given to introducing a guaranteed interview scheme for veterans applying
for roles within the Welsh Government.

Following a positive response from the Welsh Government the group has asked me to write
to you to ask what consideration Neath Port Talbot Council has given to introducing a similar
scheme.

Guaranteed interview schemes for veterans has been the norm in various departments in the
United States Government for some years and numerous councils across the United
Kingdom have benefited from rolling out similar schemes.

t would be grateful if you could discuss this proposal with the relevant members of your
team and consider introducing a guaranteed interview scheme.

I look forward to your reply.

Yours sincerely,
bm M/("l/b/

Darren Millar AM

Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru
Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 INA
03002007214

Parc Busnes Gogledd Cymrru, Abergele, LL22 8LJ
0300 200 6206

DarrenMillar@cynulliad cymru
www DarrenMillar cymru

National Assembly for Wales
Cardiff Bay. Cardiff. CFO9 TNA
03002007214

North Wales Business Park, Abergele, LL22 8LJ

0300 200 6206 TUdaIen45

Darren Millar@assemblywales
www DarrenMillarwales

% Ceidwadwyr | Welsh

® Cymreig

Conservatives



Mae'r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



Lyuarepn|

Impact Assessment - First Stage

It is essential that all initiatives undergo a first stage impact assessment to identify relevance to equalities and the Welsh language
as well as an evaluation of how the proposal has taken into account the sustainable development principle (the five ways of
working); an incorrect assessment could ultimately be open to legal challenge.

The first stage is to carry out a short assessment to help determine the need to undertake a more in-depth analysis (the second
stage).

Relevance will depend not only on the number of people/service users affected, but also the significance of the effect on them.
When completing the first step you must have regard to the following:

o Does the initiative relate to an area where important equality issues have been, or are likely to be, raised? (For example,
funding for services to assist people who are victims of rape/sexual violence or individuals with particular care need; disabled
people's access to public transport; the gender pay gap; racist or homophobic bullying in schools)

« |s there a significant potential for reducing inequalities, or improving outcomes? (For example, increasing recruitment
opportunities for disabled people).

o Does the initiative relate to instances where opportunities to use the Welsh language are likely to be affected or where the
language is likely to be treated less favourably? (For example, increase the number of Welsh speakers moving from/to a
certain area; closing specific Welsh language services or put those services at risk services;

« Does the initiative relate to the improvement of economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being? To what extent
does the initiative prevent things getting worse? (For example, funding for services to assist in cultural well-being; changes
in polices that promote independence and/or assist carers)

. Provide a description and summary of the initiative.

Identify which service area and directorate has responsibility for the initiative.

. Identify who will be affected by the initiative.

If you answer Yes to service users, staff or wider community continue with the first stage of the assessment
If you answer No to service users, staff or wider community or Yes to ‘Internal administrative process only’, go to Question 5 —
sustainable development principle.

. Using relevant and appropriate information and data that is available to you think about what impact there could be on people who

share protected characteristics; whether they are service users, staff or the wider community.

1



gruajepn L

Some things to consider include:

transport issues
accessibility
customer service
cultural sensitivity
financial implications
loss of jobs

Definitions of impacts (either positive or negative):

High — likely to be highly affected by the initiative
Medium - likely to be affected in some way

Low - likely to be affected by the initiative in a small way
Don’t know - the potential impact is unknown

You must provide reasons, and indicate what evidence you used, in coming to your decision.

. Using relevant and appropriate information and data that is available, think about what impact there could be on opportunities to
use the Welsh language and in treating the language no less favourably than English.

Definitions of impacts are the same as in Question 3.
The classification ‘Don’t Know’ should be categorised as ‘High Impact’ in both questions 3 & 4.

. Consider how the initiative has embraced the sustainable development principle in accordance with the Section 7c¢ of the Well-
being of Future Generations Act 2015.

Give details of the initiative in relation to the 5 ways of working:
e Long term - how the initiative supports the long term well-being of people
¢ Integration - how the initiative impacts upon our wellbeing objectives
¢ Involvement - how people have been involved in developing the initiative
e Collaboration - how we have worked with other services/organisations to find shared sustainable solutions;
¢ Prevention - how the initiative will prevent problems occurring or getting worse

2



6vusepnL

6. The most appropriate statement must be selected (and the relevant box ticked) based on the first stage of the assessment and an
explanation of how you have arrived at this decision must be given.

In addition a summary of the how the initiative has embraced the sustainable development principle must also be included.

Where the first stage of the assessment indicates that a more in-depth analysis is required the second stage of the assessment will
need to be completed and this will need to be started immediately.

A first stage assessment must be included as a background paper for all Cabinet/Cabinet Board/ Scrutiny Committee Reports.

Where the first stage assessment is completed by an accountable manager it must be signed off by a Head of Service/Director.



oguajepnL

1. Details of the initiative

Impact Assessment - First Stage

Forces

Initiative description and summary: Introduction of a Guaranteed Interview Scheme for Veterans of the Armed

Service Area: All

Directorate: All

2. Does the initiative affect:

Yes No

Service users X

Staff X

Wider community X

Internal administrative process only X

3. Does the initiative impact on people because of their:
Yes | No | None/ Don’t | Impact | Reasons for your decision (including evidence)/How
Negligible | Know | H/M/L | might it impact?

Age X
Disability X
Gender Reassignment X
Marriage/Civil Partnership X
Pregnancy/Maternity X
Race X
Religion/Belief X
Sex X




rquarepny

Sexual orientation

4. Does the initiative impact on:

Yes | No | None/ Don’t | Impact | Reasons for your decision (including evidence used) /
Negligible | know | H/M/L | How might it impact?
People’s opportunities X
to use the Welsh
language
Treating the Welsh X
language no less
favourably than English
5. Does the initiative impact on biodiversity:
Yes | No | None/ Don’t | Impact | Reasons for your decision (including evidence) /
Negligible | know | H/M/L | How might it impact?
To maintain and X
enhance biodiversity
To promote the
resilience of X

ecosystems, i.e.
supporting protection of

the wider environment,




cqualepn|

such as air quality, flood
alleviation, etc.

6. Does the initiative embrace the sustainable development principle (5 ways of working):

Yes | No Details
Long term - how the initiative X Introducing a Guaranteed Interview for Veterans of the Armed Forces will
supports the long term well-being of enhance the employment opportunities of this group of individuals. This
people should enhance their long term well-being.
Integration - how the initiative X As above. The introduction of the Guaranteed Interview for Veterans will be
impacts upon our wellbeing an aid to ensuring the wellbeing objectives are met.
objectives
Involvement - how people have X The initiative is being introduced as a result of a letter received by the
been involved in developing the Council on behalf of Darren Millar, Clwyd West AM and the Chair of the
initiative Cross Party Group on Armed Forces and Cadets in relation to introducing a

Guaranteed Interview Scheme for veterans of the armed forces

Collaboration - how we have worked | x Mr Millar is contacting all Local Authorities in Wales to introduce a
with other services/organisations to Guaranteed Interview Scheme for Veterans of the Armed Forces.
find shared sustainable solutions
Prevention - how the initiative will X This initiative will provide an opportunity for armed forces veterans within

prevent problems occurring or getting
worse

our communities to apply for jobs within the Council, thereby enhancing
their job prospects.




ggusrepn

7. Declaration - based on above assessment (tick as appropriate):

A full impact assessment (second stage) is not required

Reasons for this conclusion

A full impact is not required as there is no impact on any protected group.
It also has no negative impact on bio-diversity or the Welsh Language.

A full impact assessment (second stage) is required

Reasons for this conclusion




rqus|fepn L

Name Position Signature Date
Completed by Diane Hopkins Principal HR Manager 3/2/20
Signed offby | Sheenagh Rees Head of Service/Director o o« F o e e | 14002020




Eitem yr Agenda6
NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE

24 February 2020
Head of Human Resources — Sheenagh Rees

Matter for Information
Wards Affected: all wards

Christmas and New Year Holiday Arrangements 2020/21
1.  Purpose of Report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek Member approval for the opening/closing
arrangements for the main Civic Offices during the Christmas and New Year
Holiday period 2020/2021.

1.2 An early decision is requested for forward planning/Committee cycle meeting
purposes.

2. Background information
The prescribed bank holidays for the 2020 / 2021 festive period are as follows:
Friday 25" December 2020 Christmas Day

Monday 28th December 2020 Boxing Day
Friday 1st January 2021 New Year’s Day

¢ In addition to the above, Local Government Services employees are
awarded an Extra Statutory Holiday during this period, the timing of which
is to be determined by the Authority.

e Employees are also entitled to an additional day of annual leave which is
allocated over the Christmas Holiday Period.

e It has also been past practice since the inception of the Authority to award a
> day special leave to employees on the afternoon of the last working day
before Christmas.

3. Proposed Holiday Arrangements

3.1 Managers of all business critical services across the Council will ensure that
all such services continue to be alvaitliendba 24 / 7 basis, where necessary,



3.2

3.3

and that standby / callout arrangements are in place so that appropriate
responses can be made to emergencies arising during the holiday period.

The proposal below is primarily concerned with civic office opening and
closing arrangements over the holiday period.

The proposal will require employees who are not required to attend work to
use one and a half days of their annual leave entitlement to cover the office
closure period.

3.4 The following allocation of days is proposed:

3.5 (*) Main civic centres will be closed on these dates, however some services will
require employees to work on these dates and employees will be able to take

3.6

4.

Monday 218t December 2020 | Normal working day

Tuesday 22" December 2020 | Normal working day

Wednesday | 23 December 2020 | Normal working day

Thursday 24t December 2020 | Am — Offices closed — all
employees required to use half day
leave (*)
Offices close at 1 pm Special leave
granted

Friday 25t December 2020 | Christmas Day bank holiday

Monday 28t December 2020 | Boxing Day bank holiday

Tuesday 29 December 2020 | Additional Annual Leave day (*)

Wednesday | 30th December 2020 | Extra Statutory Day

Thursday 31st December 2020 | Offices closed — all employees
required to use one day of annual
leave (*)

Friday 1st January 2021 New Years’ Day Bank Holiday

their annual leave on alternative dates, so that service delivery is not
detrimentally affected. Where employees are required to work, the relevant

Head of Service will notify employees as soon as possible and will ensure that

necessary welfare facilities and management support is available.

The proposal was developed in consultation with Heads of Service, Corporate
Directors and senior managers. Trade Unions have been consulted in relation

to this proposal and support this option for 2020/21.

Implementation

In order to ensure that employees are aware of these arrangements, details
will be placed on the HR Intranet, on employee news, an article will be placed

Tudalen56




10.

11.

12.

‘In The Loop’ and Heads of Service will be requested to cascade the
information to managers and employees within their respective service areas.

Financial Impact

The decision has been made taking into account the cost to the authority of
opening the civic buildings during a time when the majority of employees take
their annual leave.

Integrated impact assessment:

A first stage impact assessment has been undertaken to assist the Council in
discharging its legislative duties (under the Equality Act, the Welsh Language
Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015, the Well-being of Future Generations
(Wales) Act 2015 and the Environment (Wales) Act 2016. The first stage
assessment, attached at appendix 1 has indicated that a more in-depth
assessment is not required. A summary is included below:

“A full impact is not required as there is no impact on any protected group. It
also has no negative impact on bio-diversity or the Welsh Language”.

Valleys Communities Impacts:
No Implications
Workforce Impacts

This proposal will impact on all employees and arrangements will be made to
ensure that employees are aware of their particular service arrangements.

Legal Impacts

There are no legal impacts associated with this proposal.
Risk Management

There are no risks associated with this report.
Consultation

There is no requirement under the Constitution for external consultation on this
item.

Recommendation

It is RECOMMENDED that members approve the proposal in relation to
Christmas / New Year holiday arrangements for 2020/20201

FOR DECISION

Tudalen57



12.

13.

Officer contact

Sheenagh Rees — Head of Human Resources
s.reesS@npt.gov.uk
Tel: 01639 763315

List of Background Papers

None.

Tudalen58


mailto:s.rees5@npt.gov.uk

egusepn L

Impact Assessment - First Stage

It is essential that all initiatives undergo a first stage impact assessment to identify relevance to equalities and the Welsh language
as well as an evaluation of how the proposal has taken into account the sustainable development principle (the five ways of
working); an incorrect assessment could ultimately be open to legal challenge.

The first stage is to carry out a short assessment to help determine the need to undertake a more in-depth analysis (the second
stage).

Relevance will depend not only on the number of people/service users affected, but also the significance of the effect on them.
When completing the first step you must have regard to the following:

o Does the initiative relate to an area where important equality issues have been, or are likely to be, raised? (For example,
funding for services to assist people who are victims of rape/sexual violence or individuals with particular care need; disabled
people's access to public transport; the gender pay gap; racist or homophobic bullying in schools)

« |s there a significant potential for reducing inequalities, or improving outcomes? (For example, increasing recruitment
opportunities for disabled people).

o Does the initiative relate to instances where opportunities to use the Welsh language are likely to be affected or where the
language is likely to be treated less favourably? (For example, increase the number of Welsh speakers moving from/to a
certain area; closing specific Welsh language services or put those services at risk services;

« Does the initiative relate to the improvement of economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being? To what extent
does the initiative prevent things getting worse? (For example, funding for services to assist in cultural well-being; changes
in polices that promote independence and/or assist carers)

. Provide a description and summary of the initiative.

Identify which service area and directorate has responsibility for the initiative.

. Identify who will be affected by the initiative.

If you answer Yes to service users, staff or wider community continue with the first stage of the assessment
If you answer No to service users, staff or wider community or Yes to ‘Internal administrative process only’, go to Question 5 —
sustainable development principle.

. Using relevant and appropriate information and data that is available to you think about what impact there could be on people who

share protected characteristics; whether they are service users, staff or the wider community.

1



oguajepnL

Some things to consider include:

transport issues
accessibility
customer service
cultural sensitivity
financial implications
loss of jobs

Definitions of impacts (either positive or negative):

High — likely to be highly affected by the initiative
Medium - likely to be affected in some way

Low - likely to be affected by the initiative in a small way
Don’t know - the potential impact is unknown

You must provide reasons, and indicate what evidence you used, in coming to your decision.

. Using relevant and appropriate information and data that is available, think about what impact there could be on opportunities to
use the Welsh language and in treating the language no less favourably than English.

Definitions of impacts are the same as in Question 3.
The classification ‘Don’t Know’ should be categorised as ‘High Impact’ in both questions 3 & 4.

. Consider how the initiative has embraced the sustainable development principle in accordance with the Section 7c¢ of the Well-
being of Future Generations Act 2015.

Give details of the initiative in relation to the 5 ways of working:
e Long term - how the initiative supports the long term well-being of people
¢ Integration - how the initiative impacts upon our wellbeing objectives
¢ Involvement - how people have been involved in developing the initiative
e Collaboration - how we have worked with other services/organisations to find shared sustainable solutions;
¢ Prevention - how the initiative will prevent problems occurring or getting worse

2



Touaepn

6. The most appropriate statement must be selected (and the relevant box ticked) based on the first stage of the assessment and an
explanation of how you have arrived at this decision must be given.

In addition a summary of the how the initiative has embraced the sustainable development principle must also be included.

Where the first stage of the assessment indicates that a more in-depth analysis is required the second stage of the assessment will
need to be completed and this will need to be started immediately.

A first stage assessment must be included as a background paper for all Cabinet/Cabinet Board/ Scrutiny Committee Reports.

Where the first stage assessment is completed by an accountable manager it must be signed off by a Head of Service/Director.



couajepn|

1. Details of the initiative

Impact Assessment - First Stage

Initiative description and summary: Christmas and New Year Holiday Arrangements 2020/21

powers

Service Area: All Council Employees other than those employed directly by School’s operating under fully delegated

Directorate: All

2. Does the initiative affect:

Yes No

Service users X

Staff X

Wider community X

Internal administrative process only X

3. Does the initiative impact on people because of their:
Yes | No | None/ Don’t | Impact | Reasons for your decision (including evidence)/How
Negligible | Know | H/M/L | might it impact?

Age X
Disability X
Gender Reassignment X
Marriage/Civil Partnership X
Pregnancy/Maternity X
Race X
Religion/Belief X
Sex X




gousepn L

Sexual orientation

4. Does the initiative impact on:

Yes | No | None/ Don’t | Impact | Reasons for your decision (including evidence used) /
Negligible | know | H/M/L | How might it impact?
People’s opportunities X
to use the Welsh
language
Treating the Welsh X
language no less
favourably than English
5. Does the initiative impact on biodiversity:
Yes | No | None/ Don’t | Impact | Reasons for your decision (including evidence) /
Negligible | know | H/M/L | How might it impact?
To maintain and X
enhance biodiversity
To promote the
resilience of X

ecosystems, i.e.
supporting protection of

the wider environment,




rous|epn L

such as air quality, flood
alleviation, etc.

6. Does the initiative embrace the sustainable development principle (5 ways of working):

Yes | No Details
Long term - how the initiative X N/A — internal policy
supports the long term well-being of
people
Integration - how the initiative X As above.
impacts upon our wellbeing
objectives
Involvement - how people have X Heads of Service and the trade unions were consulted on their views
been involved in developing the regarding this proposal and these were fully considered.
initiative
Collaboration - how we have worked X N/A — this is specific to Neath Port Talbot Council.
with other services/organisations to
find shared sustainable solutions
Prevention - how the initiative will X N/A — internal policy

prevent problems occurring or getting
worse




gousjepn L

7. Declaration - based on above assessment (tick as appropriate):

A full impact assessment (second stage) is not required

Reasons for this conclusion

A full impact is not required as there is no impact on any protected group.
It also has no negative impact on bio-diversity or the Welsh Language.

A full impact assessment (second stage) is required

Reasons for this conclusion




Name

Position

Signature

Date

Completed by

Diane Hopkins

Principal HR Manager

Signed off by

Sheenagh Rees

Head of Service/Director

DB Hopkins

14/02/20

gguajepn |




Eitem yr Agenda7

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
PERSONNEL COMMITTEE
24™ JANUARY 2020

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF HUMAN RESOURCES - SHEENAGH
REES

Matter for information
Wards Affected: All wards
Workforce Information Report

Purpose of Report

The purpose of this report is to provide Members with the 2019 / 20
Quarter 3 Workforce Information report. The report is attached at
Appendix 1.

Executive Summary:

This report provides Members with a range of data and information in
relation to the workforce of the Council.

Workforce Information:

This data set has been developed to provide Members with an overview
of the Council’s workforce, including how many people we employ,
where we employ them, how we employ them (work patterns), their
protected characteristics, Welsh language ability and key workforce
trends. Understanding how our workforce is distributed across the
Council and analysing trends in workforce activity helps inform
workforce planning, strategies and key decision making.

The data presented in this report may raise questions for Members, so
for example, where Members see fluctuations in sickness absence
levels in particular services, they may want to take the opportunity to
refer this to the relevant scrutiny committee for further investigation.

Sickness absence

The Local Government All Wales benchmarking figures for sickness
absence in 2018 / 2019 show an average FTE days lost across the 22
councils of 10.48 FTE days. Neath Port Talbot’'s end of year figure of

1
Tudalen67



9.79 FTE days places the Council at 7t place in the benchmarking table
and with average absence lower than the Welsh average.

Quarter 3 data for 2019 / 2020, compared with the same period last
year, shows a 14% increase in days lost to sickness absence.

To understand why absence has increased this year when compared
with last year, it is interesting to note the trend in long term absence.
Chart 5 provides an overview of the breakdown between long term
absence (continuous absence of 28 days or more) and short term
absence (continuous absence of less than 28 days). Long term
absence has seen an increase of 4%.

If we look then to why employees are absent from work, Chart 6 sets out
data in relation to the top ten reasons for sickness absence. This shows
increases in mental health related absence, indicating that the mental
health of our workforce is a priority for action. Cancer related absence
has also seen a significant increase in this quarter, with the majority of
this absence linked to long term absence from work.

Financial Impacts:
No implications.

Integrated impact assessment:
There is no requirement to undertaken an Integrated Impact
Assessment as this report is for monitoring / information purposes.

Valleys Communities Impacts:
No implications

Workforce Impacts:
Workforce information support workforce planning activity and the

development of workforce strategies.

Legal Impacts:
No implications.

Risk Management Impacts:
No implications.

2
Tudalen68



Consultation:
There is no requirement under the Constitution for external consultation
on this item.

Appendices
Appendix 1 — Workforce Information Report

Recommendations:

It is recommended that Members note the workforce information report.

FOR INFORMATION
Officer contact

Sheenagh Rees, Head of Human Resources, Email:
s.reesS@npt.gov.uk or tel. 01639 763315

3
Tudalen69


mailto:s.rees5@npt.gov.uk

Mae'r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



‘i‘ Cyngor Castell-nedd Port Talbot

W Neath Port Talbot Council
-

WORKFORCE INFORMATION REPORT

Overview of the Council's Workforce

Data set out in this report relates to Quarter 3 2019/20

Chart 1
FTE per Service Area

=P

‘i‘ Cyngor Castell-nedd Port Talbot

== Neath Port Talbot Council
-

www.npt.gov.uk

Tudalen71



Chart 2

6,879 employees

£ 148 million YTD

47% of gross expenditure

33% 17.6%

of employees work of employees are
Part Time teachers
78.6% 41%
of employees are of employees are
LGS/Green Book employed in our Schools

Tudalen72



Employees by Service Area

Chart 3

Full Time Equivalent Per Service Area

1100

Full Time/Part Time FTE Per Service Area

1200

925

1000

499

515
399
119 110 118
[l mmm B

323
146
— I e

=]
—

117

800
600
400
200

0

S3DIAYIS FUVOLIFHLS

AINIDY
avOd INNYL SITYM HLNOS

NOILYYINIDIY ANV ALY3JOYd

NOILD3104d
2118Nd '8 ONINNY1d

1HOdSNYYL ANV ONIY3IINIONT

SIIIAY3S
31d03d ONNOA ANV NIHATHI

SIDIAYIS LTNAY

NOILVINHO4SNYYL

SH3IHOVIL - STO0HDS

S100HIS

NOILVdIDI1YVd

SADINY IS VDT

S3DUNOS3IY NVINNH

S3DIAYAS TYIDNVYNIL

FERINYELS
JILVvY¥I0NIA ANV ADITOd
NOISIHOD ALINNININOD

ANV SdIHSHINLYVd

11

1200

Part Time

H Full Time

36

25
9% 85 82

24

208

82

B8
s

Tudalen73

(=]
[
8 —
)
(o]
M—
6“
-
5*
ET
o o o o o o
o o o o o
w =] o =t ™~

SIDIAY IS FYVOLIFHLS

AJN3IOV AVOY
ANNYL SITVM HLNOS

NOILYH3INIO3Y
ANV ALd3d0yd

NOI1O3104d
2I18Nd 8 ONINNV1d

1HOdSNVYHL
ANV DNIY33NIDNT

S3DIAY3S 31d03d
ONNOA ANV N3"d1HD

S3DIAY3S LINAV

NOILVYINHO4SNVHL

SY3IHIV3IL - STOOHOS

STOOHDS

NOILVdIDI1dvd

S3IIAYIS VDT

$324N0S3Y NVINNH

SAOIAHIS TVIONVYNIL

SADIAY3S
JILVHD0N3a ANV ADNOd

NOIS3FHOD ALINNIWINOD
ANV SdIHSHINLYVd

101




Protected Characteristics - the Workforce

Sex Chart 4

mm

Working Patterns

Total Workforce Total Workforce

A

Male Part Time
5.4%

Full Time
46.9%

Full Time
47%

Female Employees Male Employees

Full Time
34%

Full Time
80%

Tudalen74



Headcount Per Age Band

4500
4000
3500
3000
2500
2000
1500
1000

500

of employees have identified
themselves as having a Disability

The overall proportion of Black, Asian
& Minority Ethnic employees is

Welsh Language

4169
B Headcount
634 824
I I
FLUENT OR FLUENT OR WELSH LITTLE OR NO PREFER
FAIRLY FLUENT FAIRLY FLUENT LEARNER KNOWLEDGE NOTTO SAY
SPEAKER & SPEAKER
WRITER

Tudalen75



Sickness Absence Quarter 3 2019/20

2018-2019 Sickness Absence
Performance Comparison — NPT compared to All Wales

Number of working days/shifts per full-time equivalent (FTE) local authority
employee lost due to sickness absence during the year

Local Authority Ave FTE Days Lost
Denbighshire 8.33
Merthyr Tydfil 8.71
Powys 2.11
The Vale of Glamorgan 9.12
Pembrokeshire 9.28
Gwynedd 9.45
MNeath Port Talbot 9.79 7 th
Carmarthenshire 9.83
Conwy 10.08
Newport 10.10
Isle of Anglesey 10.30
Flintshire 10.46
Ceredigion 10.90
Swansea 10.98
Torfaen 11.23
Caerphilly 11.27
Monmouthshire 11.47
Wrexham 11.52
Cardiff 11.52
Bridgend 11.93
Blaenau Gwent 12.66
Rhondda Cynon Taf -
Wales 10.48
1D Measure Data ltem(s) Staff (exc teachers) | Teachers| All staff Q3 2019/20| All staff Q3 2018/19
:::;2:; :;:::‘rcke”;i :Er'“’;: :‘2':::;?“ toshort-term 9129.05 1927.42 11056.47 12045.26
Number of working | Numberof working days/shifts lost to long-term sickness 5450766 1215.26 2809.92 5556319
days/shifts per full-time |3Psence during the year
PAM/001 as;‘h“;‘r’ii';:;‘:lg;:lest ::ri":‘:et::\z::king days/shifts lost to sickness absence 3393671 5142.68 39079.39 37638.45
due to sickness absence
during the year Average number of full-time equivalent (FTE} employees 3973.60 1110.37 5083.97 5096.80
Pl Value 8.54 463 7.69 7.38

Tudalen76




Ratio of short and long term sickness - number of FTE days lost
(Including teachers)

Quarter 3 Comparisons Chart 5

1st April 2018 to 31st December 2018

Short Term
32%

Long Term
68%

1st April 2019 to 31st December 2019

Short Term
28%

Long Term
72%

Tudalen77



Sickness Absence Reasons - Top Ten
Chart 6

6000 5558

5500

s000 4819 B Q3 2018/19 m Q3 2019/20
4500

4000

3500

3000 2663 2452

2500
2000 160 160972° 766
1500
1000
50

1934

‘ i671

1604 1883

1657 1653 1501
() o

0
0

o ' = = = T ~z >

< =N a] a ] ] o
E T g ﬁ Ig 8 g ﬁ E g = U %
3 =X v < < 0 =< 20 ! Z &
o 5« 5 P ey o 2 < ry ) Q5
o O b [T w o = w e S 5

v o o o o S =
V’ A= o o v = = 5>
& o« © o W o = [

o — W = &
E = w E= 9 2
n v E o O =
Long Term / Short Term Comparison (Top 10 reasons)

Stress Short Term Work Related Stress Back Pain
13% Short Term
5% Short Term
' , 28%
Long Term
Long Term Long Term
87% 95% 72%
Post Operation Depression Stomach Short Term Bereavement / Grief
Short Term Sho;;erm 8% Short Term
16% 32%

Long Term
Long Term 89% Long Term Long Term
84% 229 68%
Joint Cancer Limb Injury / Surgery

Short Term
Short Term Shor;;erm 19%
22%
L T Long Term
Long Term ong Term 81%
78% 93%

Tudalen78



Overview of Sickness per Service Area

Chart 7

Average number of Sick days per Full Time Equivalent Employee

S3DIAY3S IYVILIFHLS

9.57
I

AINIOV QVOY ANNYL STTVYM HLNOS

NOILVYINIOIY ANV AL¥Id0dd

11.45
9.26
.04
7.25

NOILI3104d 2118Nd '8 ONINNV1d

4.73
i

LHOdSNYYL ONY ONIY3IINIONT

8.48
i

S3IIAH3S
31d03d SNNOA ANV NIYAUHD

10.29
9.75

SADIAY3S 1INAv

9.50
i

AuQ s19Y2e3] - STOOHIS

slayoea] SuIpnppx3 - SI00HDS

5.76
5.18
l [

NOILVIWYOISNVYL

4.98, 70 >

4.

i.

Quarter 3 2018/19 and 2019/20 comparison

o NOILVdIDILYVd
I
=
=
%EI S3DIAYIS WO
1%
&
o $32HNOS3Y NYINNH
&
m
4
2 24.. SIDIAYIS TVIONVNIS
By &
— <t
R 3
m = S3JIAY3S DILVHO0W3A ANV AJ1NOd
u =
) b
= . @ NOISIHOD
= & ALINNIAINOD ANV SdIHSYINLYVd
o~
g 3
u i 10l
&
=]
9 © ¢ o 9 g o 9
= o [=} 00 w =t o~ (=]
— — —

Tudalen79



Leaver Data - Quarter 3 2019/20

Between 1st April 2019 and
31st December 2019

1 7 Employees were
successful redeployments

1 3 Voluntary Redundancies

Voluntary Redundancies
in Schools

Compulsory Redundancies
in Schools

Tudalen80




Eitem yr Agenda8

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
PERSONNEL COMMITTEE
24t FEBRUARY 2020

Report of the Head of Human Resources — Sheenagh Rees

Matter for information

Wards affected: all wards

Pay Policy Statement 2020 / 2021
Purpose of the Report:

To inform Members of Personnel Committee of the Pay Policy Statement
for 2020 / 2021, to be presented to Council for approval on 25" March
2020. The Statement is attached as Appendix 1.

Executive Summary:

It is a requirement of the Localism Act 2011 that the Council produces a
Pay Policy Statement for each financial year, setting out specific
information in relation to the pay of the Council's workforce. The
Statement that has been prepared for 2020 / 2021, and attached at
Appendix 1, has been developed in line with guidance produced by the
Public Services Staff Commission “Transparency of Senior Pay in the
Devolved Welsh Public Sector” and to reflect national and local
developments in pay.

Background:

The Localism Act 2011 requires local authorities to produce a Pay Policy
Statement for each financial year articulating its policy towards a range
of issues relating to the pay of its workforce, particularly in relation to
senior staff and the lowest paid within the workforce. This is with the
aim of increasing accountability, transparency and fairness in the setting
of local pay.

The statement must be prepared annually, considered and approved by
full Council and published on the Council’'s website.

Tudalen81



An initial Pay Policy statement was developed and approved by this
Council in March 2012. As required by legislation, the Pay Policy
Statement must be reviewed at least annually, and then approved and
published by 315t March each subsequent year.

The Pay Policy Statement for 2020 / 2021 is attached at Appendix 1.
The format of the document has been developed with reference to the
Public Sector Staff Commission’s guidance “Transparency of Senior Pay
in the Devolved Welsh Public Sector” and the content has been updated
to take account of national and local pay related developments, outlined
in this report.

Pay related developments

It is the Council’s policy that any nationally agreed pay awards,
negotiated at a national level by the local government employers in
conjunction with the recognised Trade Unions will be applied, unless full
Council determines otherwise. In 2018, rates of pay applicable from 1st
April 2018 and 1st April 2019 were agreed at a national level for the Chief
Executive, Chief Officers, and Local Government Services employees
and in respect of Soulbury Officers and Youth & Community Workers,
rates of pay applicable from 1st September 2018 and 1st September
2019. These are the rates of pay reflected in the attached statement.

Negotiations in respect of pay awards to apply from 1st April 2020 (or in
the case of Soulbury Officers and Youth & Community Workers, to apply
from 15t September 2020), have not yet concluded. The Council will
apply these pay awards, as and when they are agreed, and as set out in
the respective pay agreements.

Pay Multiples

Whilst the Localism Act excludes schools from the scope of local
authority Pay Policy Statements, the Pay Policy Statement for this
Council sets out details of pay multiples both including and excluding
employees who are appointed and managed by schools:

Tudalen82



Basis Pay Multiple

Lowest paid employee earnings: Chief Executive’s 1:8:21
earnings

Median employee FTE* earnings: Chief Executive 1:5.98
Lowest paid employee earnings: average Chief 1:5.28

Officer earnings

Median employee FTE* earnings: average Chief 1:5.98
Officer earnings

* FTE= Full Time Equivalent
Financial impacts:
The Council spends 47% of gross expenditure on its workforce.
Integrated impact assessment:

There is no requirement to undertake an Integrated Impact Assessment
as this report is for monitoring / information purposes.

Valleys Communities Impacts:

No implications
Workforce impacts:

The Pay Policy Statement sets out the impact of the Council’'s pay
strategy on pay relativities within the workforce, and particularly the
relationship between the highest and the lowest paid within the
organisation.

Legal impacts:

It is a requirement under the Localism Act 2011 that the Council
produces a Pay Policy Statement for the financial year 2020 / 2021 and
that it is considered and approved by full Council, and subsequently
published on the Council’'s website.

Risk Management Impacts:

Failure to consider and approve a Pay Policy Statement for the financial
year 2020 / 2021 will place the Council in breach of the Localism Act
2011.

Tudalen83



Consultation:

There is no requirement under the Constitution for external consultation
on this item.

Recommendation:

It is recommended that Members note the Pay Policy Statement for
2020 / 2021, which will be presented to Council in March 2020 for
approval.

FOR INFORMATION

Appendices:

Appendix 1 — Pay Policy Statement 2020 / 2021
List of Background Papers:

Localism Act 2011

Officer contact:

Sheenagh Rees, Head of Human Resources, telephone number: 01639
763315, email: s.reesS@npt.gov.uk

Tudalen84



Pay Policy Statement
2020/2021

Human Resources

Neath Port Talbot
=— (astell-nedd Port Talbot

Ceunty Borough Coundil Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sinol

TO BE APPROVED BY JeeIijslel

25th March

DATE 2020

olRp[o]\ VAV 3:8Y[e]'W Oth edition

{AVIANA LN March 2021

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council

A
Ca

of 63
lenss

o~
QD




Contents Page
1 Introduction from the Leader 4
2 Legislative Framework 5
3 Terms and conditions of employment 5-7
4 Decision Making 8
5 Collective Bargaining Arrangements with Trade Unions 8
6 Senior Pay 9-12
7 Talent Management 12
8 Performance Related Pay 12
9 Support for Lower Paid Staff 12
10 Exit Policy 13-14
11 Off payroll arrangements 14
12 Pay Relativities within the Council 15
Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council Page 2 of 63
Tudalen86




Appendices

A Pay Grades — Local Government Services Employees

B Pay Grades - JNC Chief Executive and Chief Officers

C National Pay Grades — Soulbury

D National Pay Grades — JNC Youth And Community Workers
E All Employee Groups - Main Conditions of Service

F Acting Up and Honoraria Payments Schemes

G Market Pay Scheme

Recruitment of Chief Executive and Chief Officers Officer
Employment Procedure Rules

[ Early Retirement & Voluntary Redundancy Scheme

16
17
18-21
22
23-24
25-34

35-42

43-50

51-63

=

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council

o
o>

g€

u

(V)

3
1en87

Ow
QD




NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUCH COUNCIL’S PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2018 / 2019

This is Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council’s (NPT) ninth annual Pay Policy Statement.
This Statement covers the period 15t April 2020 to 315t March 2021.

This Pay Policy Statement provides the framework for decision making on pay and in
particular decision making on senior pay. Preparing and publishing this statement is a
requirement under the Localism Act 2011. The provisions in the Act do not apply to the staff
of local authority schools and therefore teaching staff are not included in the scope of this
document.

This Pay Policy Statement has been reviewed by the Council’s Personnel Committee on 24th
February 2020 approved by Council on 25th March 2020.

1. INTRODUCTION FROM THE LEADER

This Council is committed to being open and transparent and as Leader | want to ensure that
the Council tax payers of Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council have access to
information about how we pay people.

Council services are delivered by people, and most of the people we employ live and work in
this County Borough. | want to ensure that Council services are the best they can be, so our
pay policy seeks to ensure we can attract, retain and motivate the best employees with the
right skills to deliver our services.

This, of course, has to be balanced against the need to ensure value for money for the local
Council taxpayer.

The Council is one of the main employers in this area and it is important that the Council can
offer good quality employment on reasonable terms and conditions and fair rates of pay. This
will have a beneficial impact on the quality of life within the community as well as on the local
economy.
Clir R G Jones
Leader of Council

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council Pige 4 0of 63

Tudalen88



2. LEGISLATIVE FRAMEWORK

The Council has the power to appoint staff under Section 112 of the Local Government Act
1972 and complies with all relevant employment legislation in determining the pay and
remuneration of its staff.

3. TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT

The Council employs approximately 6,800 employees. The posts they are employed within are
covered by a range of terms and conditions drawn from either:

. National Joint Council for Local Government Services

o Joint National Council for Chief Executives

. Joint National Council for Chief Officers

° Soulbury Committee

° The Joint National Council for Youth and Community Workers
° Teachers (not within the scope of this statement)

The following payscales are provided as Appendices to this policy:

° Appendix A Local Government Services Employees NPT Pay Grades
° Appendix B JNC Chief Executive and Chief Officer NPT Pay Grades
° Appendix C Soulbury National Pay Grades

. Appendix D JNC Youth & Community Worker National Pay Grades

We publish a breakdown of staff numbers by pay band and gender in the Annual Equalities in
Employment Report, published separately.

National Pay Awards

For all employee groups, any nationally agreed pay awards, negotiated at a national level by
the local government employers in conjunction with the recognised Trade Unions will be
applied. The Council will pay these nationally agreed pay awards as and when determined
unless full Council decides otherwise.

Job Evaluation

In 2008 the Council completed a Job Evaluation exercise in relation to jobs which are governed
by the NJC for LGS’ terms and conditions of employment. A new pay and grading structure,
based on the outcome of the Job Evaluation exercise, was developed in partnership with, and
agreed with, our trade unions via a Collective Agreement and introduced in 2008. The pay and
grading structure is based on the NJC for LGS’ nationally negotiated pay spine as the basis for its
pay and grading structure. In order to implement the new LGS pay spine to apply from 1%t April
2019, revisions to the pay and grading structure were agreed via Collective Agreement reached
with our trade unions in January 2019 to both implement the new pay spine, and at the same

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council

Ttdalens9



time ensure that arrangements remain equality proofed. The arrangements applied with effect
from 15t April 2019.

The Council seeks to maintain the equality proofed pay and grading structure by subjecting any
newly established job or jobs which have significantly changed to a job evaluation assessment. A
Joint Job Evaluation Panel, comprising of trained management and trade union representatives
continues to meet on a regular basis to consider and determine Grading Appeals.

Starting salaries

It is the Council’s policy that all appointments to jobs with the Council are made at the
minimum of the relevant pay grade, although this can be varied where necessary, e.g. to
secure the services of the best available candidate/s.

Heads of Service can authorise a variation of starting salary for all jobs other than those
employed on Chief Officer terms and conditions. The Special Appointments Committee, a
committee with delegated authority from Personnel Committee, will determine the starting
salary of Heads of Service and the Assistant Chief Executive and full Council will determine the
starting salary of Corporate Directors and Chief Executive.

Other pay-related allowances

All other pay-related allowances, e.g. overtime payments, are the subject of national and/or
locally negotiated arrangements and subject to Member approval at Personnel Committee or
full Council, as appropriate (refer to Decision Making for more information).

The terms and conditions of employment relating to annual leave, hours of work, overtime
payment, weekend working arrangements and sick pay for all employee groups (with the
exception of teaching staff) are set out in Appendix E.

Acting Up and Honoraria Payments

There may be occasions when an employee is asked to carry out duties which are additional to
those of their substantive post, for a period of time, or to ‘act up’ into a more senior job
within the Council, covering the full range of duties of the higher job. In such circumstances an
additional payment may be made in line with the Council’s policy on payment of acting up or
honoraria. The schemes can be found at Appendix F and apply to LGS employees only.

Personnel Committee must approve any acting up or honoraria payments proposed for
officers who are not within the scope of the scheme, or where the acting up or honoraria
payment would result in the total pay package exceeding £100,000 approval must be sought
from full Council.

Market Pay Scheme
Job evaluation has enabled the Council to set appropriate pay levels based on internal job size

relativities within the Council. However, in exceptional circumstances, it may be necessary to
take account of the external pay market in order to attract and retain employees with the

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council Pige 6 0f63

Tudalen90




necessary specific knowledge, skills and experience.

The Council has a Market Pay Scheme to ensure that the requirement for any market pay
supplements is objectively justified by reference to clear and transparent evidence of relevant
market comparators, using appropriate data sources. The Market Pay Scheme can be found at
Appendix G. It is the Council’s policy that any such additional payments are kept to a
minimum and reviewed on a regular basis so that they can be withdrawn where no longer
considered necessary.

The principles underpinning this Market Pay Scheme are applied to all employee groups
within the Council. Heads of Service can authorise market pay supplements following a
recommendation from the Head of Human Resources. Where it is proposed to apply a market
supplement to a Chief Officer post within the Council, approval is sought from the Council’s
Personnel Committee. Should the market supplement result in the total pay package
exceeding £100,000 approval must be sought from full Council.

Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)

To help people save more for their retirement, the government now requires employers to
automatically enrol their workers into a workplace pension scheme. Neath Port Talbot
Council participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme. If an employee has a contract
of employment for at least 3 months (and is under 75 years of age), they will be automatically
enrolled into the LGPS, from the date employment commenced. Opt out provisions apply.

The employee contribution rates, which are defined by statue, currently range between 5.5
per cent and 12.5 per cent of pensionable pay depending on full time equivalent salary levels.
The Employer contribution rate is set by Actuaries advising the City and County of Swansea
LGPS Pension fund and reviewed on a triennial basis in order to ensure the scheme is
appropriately funded. Following the triennial valuation the employer contribution rate
effective from 1%t April 2019 is 27.1%. A new employer’s rate is due for 15t April 2020 following
the completion of the latest actuarial triennial valuation due to be announced in March 2020.

Other employee benefits

The Council believes that it has a responsibility to help support the health, wellbeing and
welfare of its employees in order to ensure that they are able to perform at their best. As part
of this approach and in common with other large employers the Council provides a small
number of non-pay benefits such as eye test vouchers for users of display screen equipment
at work, childcare vouchers via a salary sacrifice scheme (following the Government’s closure
of such schemes, this benefit is now only available for those who joined the scheme prior to
October 2018) and participation in the Cycle to Work scheme.

Employees who are members of the LGPS (see above) have the opportunity to join the Salary
Sacrifice Shared Costs Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVC) Scheme, assisting employees
who wish to increase pension benefits at retirement by paying additional voluntary
contributions into the Local Government AVC Scheme.

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council Page 7 of (i3

Tudalen91




4. DECISION MAKING

In accordance with the Constitution of the Council, the Council’s Personnel Committee has
delegated authority for decision-making in relation to staff pensions, staff terms and
conditions, i.e. related matters such as job evaluation strategies, national / local pay
negotiations, operational conditions of service policies e.g. sickness, Directorate structural /
staffing changes, including early retirement / redundancy policies, and industrial disputes.

Under the Local Authorities (Standing Order) (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2014 any
decision to determine or vary the remuneration of chief officers, or those to be appointed as
chief officers, must be made by full Council.

5. COLLECTIVE BARGAINING ARRANGEMENTS WITH TRADE UNIONS

The Council recognises the following trade unions:

NJC for Local Government Services
UNISON

GMB

UNITE

JNC for Chief Officers
UNISON
GMB

Soulbury Committee
Association of Educational Psychologists AEP
PROSPECT

JNC for Youth & Community Workers
UNISON
GMB

Teachers
NAHT
NASUWT
NEU
UCAC
ASCL

Recognition is for the purposes of consultation and negotiation on a collective basis in relation
to relevant matters, which are not determined by National Negotiating bodies, which both
parties agree are appropriate / beneficial to be determined by agreement. Negotiations are
conducted with the aim of reaching agreement and avoiding disputes. Recognition also
relates to representation on an individual trade union member basis.

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council Pige 8 0f 63

Tudalen92



6. SENIOR PAY

The Chief Executive

The Chief Executive is the senior officer who leads and takes responsibility of the Council. The
Council is a large and complex organisation with a multi-million pound budget. It has a very wide
range of functions and has responsibility for the provision of a wide range of essential services,
employing some 6,800 staff.

The role of Chief Executive is a full time and permanent position. The post holder is selected on
merit, against objective criteria, following public advertisement. The Chief Executive is
appointed by full Council.

As Head of Paid Service, the Chief Executive works closely with Elected Members to deliver the
strategic aims of the Council, including the following priorities:

e To improve the well-being of children and young people.
e Toimprove the well-being of all adults who live in the county borough.

e To develop the local economy and environment so that the well-being of people can be
improved.

The Chief Executive routinely works in the evenings and on weekends as well as the standard
Monday to Friday business week. The Chief Executive also heads the ‘on call’ arrangements
particularly to cover emergency planning arrangements.

The current Chief Executive, Mr Steven Phillips, has been in post since October 2009. Prior to
joining Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council, Mr Phillips was a Corporate Director with
Cardiff County Council and has over 30 years of experience working within a range of national
(Wales and UK) and international organisations, including the Department of Trade and Industry
in London, the UK Mission to the United Nations at Geneva and Welsh Government.

With effect from 15t April 2019, the Chief Executive’s salary falls within the pay band £129,532
to £142,485 per annum (please see Appendix B for more details).

The Council has a statutory duty to appoint a Returning Officer for specified Elections and
Referenda and has appointed the Council’s Chief Executive to this role. The Returning Officer
is personally responsible for a wide range of functions in relation to the conduct of Elections
and Referenda and is paid for discharging these functions in accordance with prescribed fees.

Details of the Chief Executive’s pay, including any additional payments are published in the
Statement of Accounts. This document is published separately.

Expenses such as for train, car mileage, overnight accommodation and parking are claimed back
in accordance with the Council’s Travel and Subsistence Payments Policy.

The Chief Executive is a member of the Local Government Pension Scheme and details are
disclosed in the Statement of Accounts. There have been no increases or enhancements to the

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council Page 9 of 13

Tudalen93



pension outside of standard arrangements.

The notice period for the role is 6 months.

Senior Staff

The current definition for senior posts is classed as:

e Statutory Chief Officers. In NPT these are:

O
O
O

the Director of Education, Leisure and Lifelong Learning;

the Director of Social Services, Health and Housing; and

the Director of Finance and Corporate Services who undertakes the role of
Section 151 Officer

The Monitoring Officer. In NPT this is the Head of Legal Services.

The Head of Democratic Services. In NPT this is the Assistant Chief Executive
and Chief Digital Officer.

e Non-statutory Chief Officers, that is non-statutory posts that report directly to the
Head of Paid Service. In NPT this is the Director of Environment and Regeneration.

e Deputy Chief Officers, that is officers that report directly to statutory or non-statutory
Chief Officers. In NPT, with effect from 1%t April 2020, these are:

(@)

O 0O O O O O O O O O

Pay

the Head of Human Resources;

the Head of Finance;

the Head of Participation;

the Head of Transformation;

the Head of Children and Young People Services;
the Head of Adult Services;

the Head of Engineering and Transport;

the Head of Property and Regeneration;

the Head of Planning and Public Protection;
the Head of Streetcare;

the Head of South Wales Trunk Road Agency.

From 1%t April 2019, Corporate Director posts attract a salary within the pay band £106,897 to
£115,277 per annum (please see Appendix B for more details).

From 1%t April 2019, the Assistant Chief Executive and Chief Digital Officer post attracts a salary
within the pay band £88,954 to £97,850 per annum (please see Appendix B for more details).

From 1t April 2019, Heads of Service posts attract a salary within the pay band of £74,090 to
£81,494 per annum (please see Appendix B for more details).

Details of senior staff pay are published in the Statement of Accounts.

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council

fe 10 of 63

Tudafen94




Recruitment of Senior Officers

The Council’s Policy and Procedures with regard to the recruitment of Chief Officers is
contained within the Officer Employment Procedure Rules as set out in the Council’s
Constitution. Please refer to Appendix H.

The determination of the remuneration to be offered to any newly appointed Chief Officer
will be in accordance with the pay structure and relevant Council policies in place at the time
of recruitment. Any salary package that exceeds the threshold of £100,000 must be approved
beforehand by full Council.

Additions to Chief Officers’ Pay

The Council pays a standard mileage rate of 45 pence per mile to Chief Officers (and all other
employees) where the Chief Officer uses his or her private vehicle on Council business. The
Council also reimburses any other reasonable expenses, incurred by the Chief Officer on
behalf of the Council whilst on Council business, on production of receipts and in accordance
with JNC conditions and other local conditions.

The cost of membership by the Chief Executive and Corporate Directors of one professional
body is met by the Council.

Independent Remuneration Panel

Section 143A of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 refers to the Independent
Remuneration Panel in Wales (“the IRP”) and sets out their functions in relation to salaries of
heads of paid service. The IRP may make recommendations about any policy in this Pay Policy
Statement which relates to the salary of the Council’s head of paid service and any proposed
change to the salary of the Council’s head of paid service. In this Council, the head of paid
service is the Chief Executive. The Council, will, as required, consult the IRP in relation to any
change to the salary of the Chief Executive which is not commensurate with a change of the
salaries of the Council’s other staff, and will have regard to any recommendation received
from the IRP when deciding whether or not to proceed with making the change.

The Council is required to identify in this pay policy statement whether any such referral has
been made to the IRP, and if so, the nature of the referral, the IRP’s decision and the Council’s
response.

An authority which chooses not to follow the advice of the Panel may become subject to a
Ministerial direction to reconsider their position. The Act also provides that authorities will be
able to reduce (but not increase) the salary payable to their head of paid service in advance of
a recommendation from the IRP, so long as the contract under which the salary is payable
does not prevent the authority from changing the salary after receiving a recommendation.

The Local Government (Wales) Act 2015 temporarily extends the power of the IRP, under
section 143A of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 to cover salaries payable to
chief officers (using the Localism Act definition) as well as the head of paid service.

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council Page 11 of |63

Tudalen95




The Council has made two referrals to the IRP. The first was made in November 2016 in
relation to the Head of Adult Services, with a proposal to apply a Market Pay Supplement of
£10,000 to this post. The IRP approved the proposal. The post has now been deleted from
the Council’s established structure.

A second referral was made in February 2017 in relation to an honorarium payment paid to
the Head of Social Work Services in respect of covering additional duties. Again, the IRP
approved the proposal. This post has now been deleted from the Council’s established
structure.

7. TALENT MANAGEMENT

The Council’s key tool for talent management and succession planning is through the
Performance Appraisal process which as well as placing an emphasis on performance, seeks to
put in place individual learning plans, developing the skills necessary not only for current roles,
but with a future focus to support career development and succession planning.

8. PERFORMANCE RELATED PAY

The Council expects high levels of performance from all employees and has implemented a
Performance Appraisal Scheme to monitor, evaluate and manage employee performance on
an ongoing basis.

No bonus or performance-related pay mechanism applies, although the maximum
incremental pay point of the pay grades for the Chief Executive and Corporate Directors are
only payable if there is a satisfactory outcome to their respective annual performance
appraisal.

9. SUPPORT FOR LOWER PAID STAFF

The Council has committed to continuing discussions with Trade Unions with the objective of
introducing the Living Wage on an affordable and sustainable basis when circumstances
allow. The introduction of the new LGS pay spine w.e.f. 1%t April 2019 saw the lowest spinal
column point on the pay spine, SCP 1, equate to the National Living Wage Foundation’s
national living wage rate of £9.00 per hour (although it is acknowledged that this in itself does
not make the Council a ‘Living Wage Employer’.

The Council has committed to working with Chwarae Teg as part of the Chwarae Teg FairPlay
Employer Scheme. Chwarae Teg have supported the Council by carrying out a Gender
Equality Audit of the Council’s policy and practices, and to use this to inform the development
of a Gender Equality Action Plan, which includes specific actions to reduce the Council’s
Gender Pay Gap. Chwarae Teg will be helping the Council to develop a Mentoring Programme
for low paid paid women, particularly important, as whilst the Council’s overall gender profile
is 71% female, 97% of those employed in the Council’s lowest pay band, Grade 1, are female.

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council fe 12 of 63

Tudafen9é



10. EXIT POLICY

Early Retirement, Voluntary Redundancy and Compulsory Redundancy

The Council’s Exit Policy for employees prior to reaching normal retirement age, is set out
within its Early Retirement, Voluntary Redundancy and Compulsory Redundancy (ER / VR / CR)
Scheme, in accordance with Regulations 5 and 6 of the Local Government (Early Termination
of Employment) (Discretionary Compensation) Regulations 2006. Please refer to Appendix I.
Please note that a separate scheme operates for those employed on Teacher terms and
conditions of employment.

Under the Scheme, all Early Retirement and Voluntary Redundancy expressions of interest are
subject to a robust business case, seeking to limit discretionary compensation to an affordable
limit, as well as considering the costs of any consequential organisational / pay grade changes.

Any severance package in respect of early termination of employment that exceeds a
threshold of £100,000 must be approved beforehand by full Council. When calculating the
value of a severance package, the following payments should be included:

o salary paid in lieu of notice

o lump sum redundancy / severance payment

o cost to the Council of the strain on the pension fund arising from providing early access
to an unreduced pension.

The Council has operated a Voluntary Redundancy Scheme during the financial year 2019 /
2020 and details of all employees who exited the Council’s employment under this Scheme, as
well as the small number of employees who exited under Compulsory Redundancy, can be
found in the annual Statement of Accounts.

Exit Cap and Recovery Provisions

The UK Government intends to introduce Regulations that will impose a cap of £95,000 on exit
payments for public sector workers. It also intends to develop regulations to enable the
recovery of exit payments made to employees who leave the public sector and return within
12 months, although the timetable for these regulations is not as clear. The minimum salary
to which the recovery provisions will apply is £80,000 per annum. If and when the UK
Government introduces these Regulations, Council policies will be updated as appropriate to
take this into account.

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council Page a of 63

Tudalen97



Re-employment

Employees who leave the council’s employment on the grounds of early retirement
(ER) or voluntary redundancy (VR) who are employed on LGS Grades 11, 12 and 13
or equivalent, will not normally be permitted to return to any paid temporary or
permanent NPT council employment (which includes schools) or be re-engaged as an
agency worker or on a consultancy basis. However, in exceptional circumstances, re-
employment may be permitted if the “employing” Head of Service is able to provide
a robust business case for doing so which is acceptable to the Director of Finance &
Corporate Services and Head of Human Resources, in consultation with the relevant
trade union/s.

All other employees who leave the council’s employment on the grounds of early
retirement (ER) or voluntary redundancy (VR) will not be permitted to return to
employment with the council for a period of 12 months following their leaving date.
However, again, and in exceptional circumstances, earlier re-employment may be
permitted if the “employing” Head of Service is able to provide a robust business
case for doing so which is acceptable to the Director of Finance & Corporate services
and Head of Human Resources, in consultation with the relevant trade union/s.

Flexible retirement

Employees are permitted to take flexible retirement in accordance with the provisions of the
Local Government Pension Scheme and the Council’s Flexible Retirement Scheme.

11. OFF PAYROLL ARRANGEMENTS

Where the Council is unable to recruit to a job under a contract of service, or where there is a
need for specialist support for a specific project, the Council will, where necessary, consider
engaging individuals under a contract for service. These will be sourced through the relevant
procurement process under the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules, ensuring the Council is able
to demonstrate value for money from competition in securing the relevant service.

Where the contract for service is to provide cover for a vacant post, in addition to ensuring
adherence to Contract Procedure Rules, decision making in relation to the appointment will be in
line with the Council’s rules in relation to appointments i.e. Council will determine appointments
at Director level, Special Appointments Committee will determine appointments at Head of
Service level, and Heads of Service or those acting under their authority will determine
appointments at Accountable Manager level and below.

With effect from April 2017, the UK Government introduced “Intermediaries Legislation”, known
as IR35, reforming tax rules for off-payroll working in the public sector and the Council has
implemented the new rules in line with the legislation.

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council fe 14 of 63

Tudafen98



12. PAY RELATIVITIES WITHIN THE COUNCIL

The lowest paid employee is on £17,364 per annum, in accordance with the minimum spinal
column point (SCP 1) of the NJC pay spine for Local Government Services employees. This
excludes apprentices who are engaged on different arrangements with training being the
main feature of the arrangement and it also excludes agency staff.

The highest paid employee is the Chief Executive and the pay band minimum is £129,532
rising to the pay band maximum of £142,485. The current post holder earns £142,485.

The median salary in the Council is £23,836.

The pay multiple between the lowest paid (full time equivalent) employee and the Chief
Executive is a ratio of 1:8.21 and the pay multiple between the lowest paid employee and
average Chief Officer is a ratio of 1:5.28.

The pay multiple between the median full time equivalent earnings and the Council’s Chief
Executive is a ratio of 1:5.98 where all Council employees are taken into account and 1:5.98
where employees appointed and managed by head teachers/Governing Bodies are excluded
from the calculation, as required by the provisions of the Localism Act 2011.

The multiple between the median full time equivalent earnings and the average Council Chief
Officer is 1:3.85 where all Council employees are taken into account and 1:3.85 where
employees appointed and managed by head teachers/Governing Bodies are excluded from
the calculation, as required by the provisions of the Localism Act 2011.

f 63

en99

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council Pa

N
o

%
o



APPENDIX A

Local Government Services Employees Pay Grades Effective 15t April

2019
Grade Point | Salary Grade Point | Salary
GRADE 1 1 17,364 GRADE 8 *25 28,785
2 17,711 26 29,636
GRADE 2 2 17,711 27 30,507
3 18,065 28 31,371
GRADE 3 3 18,065 29 32,029
4 18,426 30 32,878
5 18,795 GRADE 9 *29 32,029
GRADE 4 5 18,795 30 32,878
6 19,171 31 33,799
7 19,554 32 34,788
8 19,945 33 35,934
9 20,344 34 36,876
GRADE 5 *9 20,344 GRADE 10 *33 35,934
10 20,751 34 36,876
11 21,166 35 37,849
12 21,589 36 38,813
NOT
13 | USED 37 39,782
14 22,462 38 40,760
15 22,911 GRADE 11 *37 39,782
NOT
16 | USED 38 40,760
17 23,836 39 41,675
GRADE 6 *16 23,369 40 42,683
17 23,836 41 43,662
18 24,313 GRADE 12 *40 42,683
19 24,799 41 43,662
20 25,295 42 44,632
21 25,801 43 45,591
22 25,317 GRADE 13 *43 45,591
GRADE 7 *21 25,801 44 46,609
22 25,317 45 47,664
23 26,999 46 48,739
24 27,905
25 28,785
26 29,636

*Denotes Salary Scale Points that will be removed after one year and
no longer used with effect from 1st April 2020

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council age 16 of 63

Tudalén100



APPENDIX B

JNC Chief Executive and Chief Officers Pay Grades

Effective 15t April 2019

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Point 1 Point 2 Point 3 Point 4 Point 5*
2019/2020 | £129,532 £132,770 £136,009 £139,246 £142.,485
* subject to performance
CORPORATE DIRECTOR

Point 1 Point 2 Point 3 Point 4 Point 5*
2019/2020 | £106,897 £107,419 £110,037 £112,657 £115,277
* subject to performance
ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE & CHIEF DIGITAL OFFICER

Point 1 Point 2 Point 3 Point 4 Point 5
2019/2020 | £88,954 £91,179 £93,403 £95,626 £97,850
HEAD OF SERVICE

Point 1 Point 2 Point 3 Point 4 Point 5
2019/2020 | £74,090 £75,941 £77,789 £79,643 £81,494
Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council Page 17 of 63

’ u fen 101




APPENDIX C

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
NATIONAL PAY GRADES - SOULBURY

EDUCATIONAL PSYCHOLOGISTS - SCALE A

SPINE POINT Pay — with effect from
01.09.19
37,175
39,062
40,949
42,834
44,721
46,607
48,383
50,159
51,822*
53,488*
55,040

= |2|L R (NS A W IN =

= O

Notes:

1. Pay scales to consist of 6 consecutive points, based on the duties and
responsibilities attaching to posts and the need to recruit, retain and
motivate staff.

2. *Extension to scale to accommodate structured professional assessment
points.

SENIOR & PRINCIPAL EDUCATIONAL PSYCHOLOGISTS - SCALE B

SPINE POINT Pay — with effect from
01.09.19
1. 46,607
2. 48,383
3. 50,159*
4. 51,822
5. 53,488
6. 55,040
7. 55,678
8. 56,869
9. 58,050
10. 59,251
11. 60,428
12. 61,628
13. 62,849
14. 64,029**
15. 65,266**
16. 66,490
17. 67,723**
18. 68,954

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council age 18 of 63

TudaIPen102



Notes:

1. Pay scales to consist of not more than four consecutive points, based
on the duties and responsibilities attaching to posts and the need to

recruit, retain and motivate staff.

2. * Normal minimum point for the Principal Educational Psychologist

undertaking the full range of duties at this level.

3. ** Extension to range to accommodate discretionary scale points and

structured professional assessments

4. Principals are paid on a 4 point scale 8 - 14 (this includes 3 spa points)

TRAINEE EDUCATIONAL PSYCHOLOGISTS

SPINE POINT

Pay — with effect from 01.09.19

23,884

25,632

27,378

29,128

30,875

O WINI—~

32,623

ASSISTANT EDUCATIONAL PSYCHOLOGISTS

SPINE POINT Pay — with effect from 01.09.19
1 29,359
2 30,559
3 31,757
4 32,950

YOUNG PEOPLE’S / COMMUNITY SERVICE MANAGERS

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council

SPINE POINT Pay — with effect from 01.09.19
1 36,761
2 37,964
3 39,166
4 40,394*
5 41,641
6 42,857
7 44, 101**
8 45,515
9 46,295
10 47,500
11 48,697
12 49,897
13 51,088
14 52,291
15 53,495
16 54,703
17 55,917
18 57,124
19 58,323

20 59,548***
Page 19 of 63
Tludalen103




21 60,797***
22 62,075
23 63,377
24 64,707

Notes:

The minimum Youth and Community Service Officers’ scale is 4 points. Other
salary scales to consist of not more than four consecutive points based on
duties and responsibilities attaching to posts and the need to recruit retain and

motivate staff.

* normal minimum point for senior youth and community officers

undertaking the full range of duties at this level

> normal minimum point for principal youth and community service officer

undertaking the full range of duties at this level

e extension to range to accommodate discretionary scale points and

structured professional assessments.

EDUCATIONAL IMPROVEMENT PROFESSIONALS (EIPs)

SPINE POINT Pay — with effect from 01.09.19
1 35,444
2 36,713
3 37,912
4 39,127
5 40,334
6 41,542
7 42,811
8 44,032*
9 45,455
10 46,724
11 47,976
12 49,188
13 50,561**
14 51,785
15 53,137
16 54,359
17 55,585
18 56,788
19 58,029

20 58,670***
21 59,902
22 60,976
23 62,158
24 63,218
25 64,351
26 65,457
27 66,588
28 67,734
29 68,883
30 70,030
31 71,167
32 72,322
33 73,477

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council

age 20 of 63

TudaIP n104




34 74,661
35 75,841
36 77,055
37 78,250
38 79,457
39 80,648
40 81,838
41 83,035
42 84,230
43 85,424
44 86,624
45 87,821
46 89,020
47 90,224
48 91,416
49 92,613****
50 93,812****

Notes: Salary scales to consist of not more than four consecutive points,
based on the duties and responsibilities attaching to posts and the need to
recruit and motivate staff.

* normal minimum point for EIP undertaking the full range of duties at
this level

normal minimum point for senior EIP undertaking the full range of
duties at this level

normal minimum point for leading EIP undertaking the full range of
duties at this level

extension to range to accommodate structured professional
assessments.

*%*
*k%

*kkx

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council Page 21 of |63

Tudalen105



APPENDIX D

NATIONAL PAY GRADES - JNC YOUTH AND COMMUNITY WORKERS

YOUTH AND COMMUNITY SUPPORT WORKER
RANGE

SPINE POINT Pay — with effect from 01.09.19
3 £18,117
4 £18,431
5 £18,791
6 £19,106
7 £19,389
8 £20,038
9 £20,865
10 £21,512
11 £22,558
12 £23,580
13 £24,636
14 £25,729
15 £26,474
16 £27,252
17 £28,017

PROFESSIONAL RANGE

SPINE POINT Pay — with effect from 01.09.19
13 £24,636
14 £25,729
15 £26,474
16 £27,252
17 £28,017
18 £28,787
19 £29,551
20 £30,318
21 £31,179
22 £32,155
23 £33,105
24 £34,060
25 £35,022
26 £35,983
27 £36,945
28 £37,918
29 £38,884
30 £39,851

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council age 22 of 63 6

TudaIP n106



Appendix E

All Employee Groups - Main Conditions of Service

ANNUAL LEAVE
(pro rata for part time employees)

X/
L %4

Chief Executive

Chief Officers

34 days pa (includes one day allocated at
Christmas)

X/
L X4

Local Government Services

32 days after 5 years service; 25 days pa
initially (includes one day allocated at
Christmas)

Soulbury

32 days after 5 years service; 25 days pa
initially (includes one day allocated at
Christmas)

7/
L X4

Youth & Community Workers

35 days after 5 years service; 30 days pa
initially (includes one day allocated at
Christmas)

HOURS OF WORK

X/
L %4

X/
L %4

Chief Executive

Chief Officers

Minimum of 37 hours per week, together
with additional evening, weekend and
bank holiday working as required

X3

%

X3

%

4

X/
*

Local Government Services
Soulbury

Youth & Community Workers

Standard working week is 37 hours

OVERTIME

PAYMENTS

7/
L X4

X/
L X4

Chief Executive
Chief Officers

Soulbury

None payable

3

%

Local Government Services

Time plus 30% for weekdays and
weekends; double time on Bank
Holidays, except Christmas Day which is
triple time

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council

Page 23 of |63

Tuda

enl07




7/
L X4

Youth and Community Workers

Time plus 30% for weekdays and
weekends; double time on Bank Holidays

WEEKEND WORKING PAYMENTS

X/
£ %4

L)

X/
L X4

Chief Executive
Chief Officers
Soulbury

Youth & Community Workers

None payable

Local Government Services

Time plus 30%

SICK PAY SCHEME

Chief Executive

Chief Officers

Local Government Services
Soulbury

Youth & Community Workers

1 month’s full pay at commencement of
employment, increasing year on year,
after 5 years service, to up to 6 months
at full pay, followed by up to 6 months at
half pay

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council

Tudaf

age 24 of 63

n108




APPENDIX F

ACting Up SCheme -a-n-fgaesattel?l-ﬁrd[i]afl’g?ttTalhot

County Barough Council Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sinol

Human Resources

Personnel

APPROVED BY .
Committee

DLYI 15t April 2009

EDITION/VERSION RYZISleIolil

VALY 15t April 2020

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council Page 25 of 63

Tudalen109



Contents
1 Purpose
2 Principles
3 Definition of Acting Up
4 Period of Acting Up
5 Payment
Provisions to Cover the Period 1st April 2008 to the Date the
6 .
new Scheme is Agreed and Introduced
7 Monitoring and Review
8 Grievances
Appendices
A Acting Up Payments — Payment Authorisation Form

Page

w w

b

6-7

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council age 26 of 63

TudaIPenllo




1. PURPOSE

2. PRINCIPLES

(a)

(b)

(c)

1.1 To outline a revised scheme for Acting Up payments for Neath Port Talbot
County Borough Council employees (with the exception of those employed
under Teaching, Soulbury, Youth & Community Workers and JNC Chief Officer’s
terms and conditions of employment) from 15t April 2008.

1.2 The revised Scheme harmonises the differing former Manual and APT&C
Acting-up provisions under a single set of rules.

This scheme should adhere to the principles of the Equality of Opportunity in
Employment Policy.

3. DEFINITION OF ACTING UP

3.1 Acting up applies where an employee is formally requested to undertake the
full duties and responsibilities of a higher graded post for a period of at least
one day/shift.

3.2 Acting up does not apply where:-

An employee or employees undertake(s) only partial duties and
responsibilities of a higher graded post

The duties and responsibilities are shared between more than one
employee. The Honorarium Scheme provisions may cover these
circumstances.

There is a permanent change to the normal duties of a job. This may
warrant a new or re-evaluation of the post.

(d) The post being covered is at the same pay grade. (this may have an
impact on current working practices as employees move from a pay
point to pay grade)

(e) There are formal deputising responsibilities, written into the job
description, which have been taken into consideration when evaluating
the post.

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council Page 27 of 63

Tudalen111




4. PERIOD OF ACTING UP

4.1 Under this new Scheme all employees are eligible for an Acting-up payment if
they are requested to carry out the full duties and responsibilities of the higher
graded post from the first day/shift.

4.2 Where the employee is requested to act-up into a distinct and different post on
day one e.g. Refuse Loader to Refuse Driver or Care Assistant to Care Officer, it
is quite clear this situation comes within the definition of acting-up and the
employee is entitled to the appropriate acting-up payment, perhaps for just
one day or the hours of the shift.

4.3 In the office environment, in circumstances where an employee is absent for
whatever reason and there may be a need for another employee to act-up into
that role, to come within the scope of this Scheme, the employee must be
formally requested to act-up and must take on the full duties/responsibilities of
the higher graded post. In practical terms this may well not occur from day one
in the office environment

5. PAYMENT

5.1 The sum to be paid is the minimum rate of pay that would apply were the
employee promoted to the higher graded post. It must be at least one
increment higher. The payment will be effective from the first day on which the
employee was required to undertake the duties and responsibilities of the
higher graded post. The payment will be pro-rata for part-time employees
based on the standard 37 hour week.

5.2 Where practical, the agreed Acting up arrangements and payment should be
set out in writing to the employee, using the form attached (Payment
Authorisation Form), stating the remuneration to be received and the
anticipated length of the acting up period. If this period [by reference to date/s
or circumstances] is subsequently extended, this should be confirmed in
writing. Where this is not practical, because urgent arrangements need to be
put into place to meet service delivery needs, Acting up arrangements can be
confirmed by the line manager / supervisor verbally, authorised and certified
for payment on the time-sheet and then followed up subsequently in writing,
at a later date.

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council age 28 of 63

TudaIPen112



6. MONITORING AND REVIEW

The Acting-up arrangements and payments will be monitored by the Head of Human
Resources from an equality, diversity and cost effective perspective on an annual basis,
to ensure that the Scheme is implemented in a non-discriminatory manner in
accordance with the provisions of the Scheme. The trade unions will be consulted on
the outcome of the annual monitoring/review exercise.

7. GRIEVANCES

An employee can raise a grievance in connection with the application of this scheme
via the Authority’s Grievance Policy and Procedure.

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council Page 29 of 63

Tudalen113



Honoraria Payments Scheme <l Nt ot bt

County Borough Coundl Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sinal

Human Resources

Personnel

APPROVED BY .
Committee

DY E 15t April 2009

o] R E(o\ WAV ;3 [o]'M Version 1

VAVl 15t April 2020

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council age 30 of 63

Tudalpen114



Contents Page

1 Purpose 3

2 Equality Principle 3

3 Definition 3

4 Principles of Application 4

5 Payment Levels 4
Provisions to Cover the Period 1st April 2008 to the Date the

6 ) 5
new Scheme is Agreed and Introduced

7 Monitoring and Review 5

8 Grievances 5
Appendices

A Honoraria Form 6-8

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council Page 31 of |63
Tudalenl15




1. PURPOSE

To outline a revised scheme for the payment of honoraria to Neath Port Talbot County
Borough Council employees (with the exception of those employed under Teaching,
Soulbury, Youth & Community Workers and Chief Officer’s terms and conditions of
employment) from the date the collective agreement is signed.

2. EQUALITY PRINCIPLE

This scheme should adhere to the principles of the Equality of Opportunity in
Employment Policy

3. DEFINITION

An honoraria is a payment for:

° duties outside the scope of an employee’s normal role over an extended

period, but not more than 12 months

° duties or responsibilities which are within the scope of an employee’s

normal role but are temporarily exceptionally onerous

In both of the above circumstances, honorarium payments are to be initiated
by the line manager and agreed in writing using the form attached (Payment
Authorisation Form), in advance of these duties or responsibilities being
undertaken.

Honoraria should not be used where there is a permanent change to the
normal duties of a job or where an employee is requested to ‘Act up’ to cover a
higher-graded post. In these circumstances the post should be assessed under
the Council’s Job Evaluation Scheme by being included within the Job
Evaluation Questionnaire or an Acting Up payment should be set up.

Accelerated increments within an employee’s pay scale should not be used
instead of an honoraria payment. Increments can only be awarded in
accordance with the criteria agreed under the NPT Pay and Grading
Agreement. Individual managers do not have discretion to authorise
increments and they will not be actioned for payment by the payroll section.

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council

age 32 of 63

Tudalpen116




4. PRINCIPLES OF APPLICATION

4.1.1 Honoraria should be treated as a one-off recognition or reward relating to a
particular piece of work or circumstances as described in Section 3, [and should
be paid as soon as possible after the completion of that task] or staged/regular
payments where appropriate.

4.2 To ensure consistency across the Council the application and payment of
honoraria must be in accordance with this Scheme.

4.3 The payment of honoraria should be exceptional rather than the expected
norm.

5. PAYMENT LEVELS

5.1 In deciding the level of payment to be made, the following should be taken into
consideration:

° The nature, scope and level of difficulty of the additional
duties/responsibilities

° The length of time involved
° The impact on the employee’s normal role
° The level of ‘new’ learning for the employee
° Current level of pay
° The level of pay of a “comparator” post, where appropriate

5.2 As honoraria are meant to provide some flexibility for managers to recognise
specific tasks, it is expected that payment will be made as soon as possible after
successful completion of the task.

5.3 Where an employee is receiving regular honoraria payments linked to an
additional or exceptionally onerous responsibility, this should be reviewed by

the line manager on a regular basis and reference made to section 2 of this
scheme.

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council Page 33 of 63

Tudalen117



6. MONITORING AND REVIEW

The Honoraria arrangements and payments will be monitored by the Head of Human
Resources from an equality, diversity and cost effective perspective on an annual basis,
to ensure that the Scheme is implemented in a non-discriminatory manner in
accordance with the provisions of the Scheme. The trade unions will be consulted on
the outcome of the annual monitoring/review exercise.

7. GRIEVANCES

An employee can raise a grievance in connection with the application of this
scheme

via the Authority’s Grievance Policy and Procedure.

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council age 34 of 63

Tudalpen118



APPENDIX G
Market Pay SCheme ?-_E/Eaesiterlll-ﬂzrdli}afl’g?ttTalhot

Ceunty Borough Coundil Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sinol

Human Resources

Personnel

APPROVED BY .
Committee

DLV I 15t April 2009

EDITION/VERSION JPALNeliilel!

VALY 15t April 2020

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council Page 35 of 63

Tudalen119



10

Contents

Context and Purpose of NPT Market Pay Scheme

NPT Market Pay Scheme Implementation

Scope of Market Pay Scheme

Preparation of a Market Pay Supplement Business Case
Funding

Payment Arrangements for Market Pay Supplements
Duration and Review of Individual Market Pay Supplements
Authorisation Process

Organisational Review of Market Pay Supplements

Interpretation

Page

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council

age 36 of 63

TudaIPen120




1. CONTEXT AND PURPOSE OF NPT MARKET PAY SCHEME

The use of a job evaluation system to create an equality-proofed pay and grading
structure ensures that basic rates of pay are based on robust “internal pay relativities”.
This process may not always result in the consequential basic rates of pay reflecting
the value of similar jobs in the wider labour market.

This Market Pay Scheme for Neath Port Talbot Council has been developed in the
recognition that the Authority’s services are delivered by employees who possess skills
and experience which may sometimes be in short supply and, therefore, the use of
market pay supplements is one measure which is available to safeguard the provision
of such services.

The purpose of this Market Pay Scheme is to enable the Council to establish
competitive rates of pay for specific posts which, do not attract a basic rate of pay
which is sufficient to recruit and/or retain the number and quality of postholders
required.

A key aim of this Scheme is to ensure that all market pay supplements are initially
introduced, and subsequently operated, in a fair and consistent manner which avoids
potential non-compliance with equal pay legislation.

In particular, there must be clear evidence that the basic rate of pay for a specific post
determined by the Council’s pay and grading structure is significantly less than the
relevant market rate of pay for a similar post and also that there are recruitment
and/or retention problems.

2. NPT MARKET PAY SCHEME IMPLEMENTATION

This Scheme has been implemented alongside the existing NPT pay and grading
structure and replaces all former arrangements for market pay supplements and
recruitment/retention payments.

Market pay supplements will be applicable to specific post/s and are not intended to
reflect the contribution or performance of individual postholders.

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council Page 37 of 63

Tudalen121



3. SCOPE OF MARKET PAY SCHEME

Each post falling within the scope of the NJC for Local Government Services (“Green
Book”) will be eligible to attract a market pay supplement, but always subject to a
satisfactory recruitment and/or retention business case being developed and
approved.

4. PREPARATION OF A MARKET PAY SUPPLEMENT BUSINESS CASE

Prior to a business case being developed in relation to a proposed market pay
supplement, the “employing” Head of Service must satisfy him/herself that all other
reasonable options have been considered, including a review of the skills,
qualifications and experience needed for the post/s in question.

The Head of Human Resources will be responsible for researching the business case for
the payment of a market pay supplement and will formally make a recommendation in
response to the Head of Service who proposes any such payment in relation to a
specific post.

The following criteria will be taken into account when considering if a business case
exists for a market pay supplement to be payable:

» availability of relevant NPT workforce data/evidence to demonstrate the
nature and extent of the recruitment and/or retention difficulties being
experienced, or anticipated, at NPT

» the extent to which there may be an adverse effect on service delivery at
NPT if a recruitment and/or retention difficulty is not addressed

» an assessment of the likely duration of the recruitment/retention difficulties
being experienced — short term or longer

» the availability of up to date and accurate market pay data from relevant
comparator organisations relating to the NPT post/s which are subject to
recruitment and/or retention difficulties. Such data may be collected on a
local, travel to work/regional or national basis, dependent upon the post/s
involved.

» an equality impact assessment must be completed as part of the business
case.

Wherever possible, the market pay data from other organisations will comprise not
only the basic rate of pay, but also other pay and non-pay benefits, including pension
provisions.

Attached is the template business case that must be completed prior to any
supplement being implemented.

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council age 38 of 63

TudaIPen122



Market supplements will be funded by the “employing” Head of Service.

6. PAYMENT ARRANGEMENTS FOR MARKET PAY SUPPLEMENTS

Each approved market pay supplement will be a calculated static sum, which will not
increase as a result of any national pay award or incremental progression. Whilst the
market pay supplement will not be included in “basic pay” and will not be taken into
account in relation to the calculation of overtime hours worked or other pay
allowances, it will be permissible for the market pay supplement to include an
appropriate compensatory adjustment for premium rates of pay for contractual
overtime and/or contractual unsocial hours working. Market pay supplements will be
shown separately on employees’ payslips and will be subject to tax, NI and pension
contributions in the normal way.

Market pay supplements will be paid in accordance with the employee’s usual pay
frequency. If a postholder in receipt of a market pay supplement moves to an
alternative post within the Council which does not attract a market pay supplement,
the payment shall cease from the date on which the postholder leaves the post which
attracts the pay supplement. The supplement should ensure that the overall
remuneration for the post(s) is sufficient to enable the recruitment and retention of
staff and no higher.

7. DURATION AND REVIEW OF INDIVIDUAL MARKET PAY SUPPLEMENTS

The duration of market pay supplements will be determined at the outset and should
be set at the optimum level to recruit or retain staff, without committing to
unnecessary long-term costs that cannot be justified financially or from an equal pay
perspective. A market pay supplement will normally be for two years, unless there is a
strong business case to justify a longer period. The details will be conveyed to the
postholder/s concerned in writing.

The market pay supplement payable for each post will be reviewed at least a year prior
to the end date of the supplement, by the employing Head of Service. Where, at the
time of the review, the business case to support the continued payment of a market
pay supplement is no longer sustainable, the supplement shall be withdrawn and 12
months’ notice of this given in writing. Where a decision is made to withdraw the pay
supplement from a specific category of post, this shall apply to all similar posts and
their consequential postholders simultaneously.

When the payment has been approved, all employees receiving the supplement will be
notified in writing of its approval and the conditions attached to its payment. When
advertising and recruiting to any post(s) for which a market supplement is paid, the
supplement should be identified as a separate amount which is time-limited and
subject to review. Market supplements will not be subject to pay protection.

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council Page 39 of 63

Tudalen123




8. AUTHORISATION PROCESS

Market pay supplements will be considered, and authorised where appropriate, by the
“employing” Head of Service following receipt of supporting information and a formal
recommendation from the Head of Human Resources.

Designated NPT trade union representatives will be consulted regarding all proposed
changes to market pay supplements.

9. ORGANISATIONAL REVIEW OF MARKET PAY SUPPLEMENTS

An annual review will be undertaken of all market pay supplements being paid, in
consultation with the trade unions, and the outcome reported to the Corporate
Director Group and others, as appropriate.

10. INTERPRETATION

Any matters of interpretation arising from this Scheme will be determined by the Head
of Human Resources, in consultation with designated trade union representatives.

Any employee who is aggrieved with the application of this Scheme is entitled to
pursue his/her grievance in accordance with agreed procedures.

11. TEMPLATE BUSINESS CASE

MARKET PAY SUPPLEMENT

POST TITLE
1. Introduction

The purpose of the Council’s Market Pay Scheme is to enable the Council to establish competitive
rates of pay for specific posts which do not attract a basic rate of pay which is sufficient to recruit

and / or retain the quality of postholder required.

The purpose of this paper is to create/review (delete as applicable) the market pay supplement
applicable to the post of POST TITLE.

2. Background

PLEASE PROVIDE A BRIEF SUMMARY. THE SPECIFIC RATIONALE BEHIND THE PAYMENT SHOULD
BE PROVIDED IN SECTION 5.

3. Current basic remuneration package

The post has been evaluated under the Council’s Job Evaluation Scheme and awarded Grade **,
SCP ** —** £ _ £ per annum.

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council age 40 of 63

Tudalpen124



The allowances received per annum are variable, however at present are:

. Sleeping in allowance = £

. Weekend enhancement = £

. Standby = £

Total = £ per annum

Total remuneration package = £ - £ per annum

4, Market Pay

Background to Market Pay Scheme

A market supplement is paid as an allowance and, in line with the Market Pay Scheme, is not
taken into account in relation to the calculation of overtime hours worked or other pay
allowances. It is however permissible for the market pay supplement to include an appropriate
compensatory adjustment for premium rates of pay for contractual overtime and / or contractual

unsocial hours working.

Market payments will be shown separately on employees’ payslips and will be subject to tax, NI
and pension contributions in the normal way.

Where, at the time of the review, the business case to support the continued payment of a
market pay supplement is no longer sustainable, the supplement shall be withdrawn and 12
months’ notice of this given in writing.

OUTLINE DETAILS OF CURRENT SUPPLEMENT IF APPLICABLE.

5. Business case for Market Supplement

OUTLINE ANY RECRUITMENT DIFFICULTIES, SERVICE PERFORMANCE ISSUES, DETAILS OF
CONSULTATIONS WITH PROGESSIONAL BODIES ETC. AN EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT MUST
FORM PART OF THE BUSINESS CASE.

6. Market Intelligence

Comparable market intelligence has been obtained:-

o The POST OF is paid £ - £.

o The POST OF is paid £ plus an of ** = £

o} IF APPLICABLE - Neither provision is in London (no London Weighting.)
7. Feedback from Potential Candidates (IF RELEVANT)

Feedback from potentially qualified and suitable candidates, informally approached to determine
whether or not they would be interested in applying for the POST, has determined that the
remuneration package currently offered is not sufficient to attract a field of qualified, high calibre

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council Page 41 of |63

Tudalen125




of applicants.
8. Conclusion
Consideration has been given to the following:

. Difficulties attracting suitably qualified candidates to apply for the position evidenced
through the failed recruitment campaign in DATE;

. The adverse effect on the service delivery and improvements if the recruitment difficulty
is not addressed;

. The market pay intelligence that demonstrates that in comparable centres elsewhere in
the UK, pay rates are considerably higher.

It is proposed, therefore, to offer/increase the Market Pay Supplement applicable to this post,
and to bring the pay package into line with the job market. It is proposed to pay a supplement of
£ per annum. This will provide a starting salary of £ per annum.

Terms

The market pay supplement will be paid as an allowance and will be shown separately on
payslips. It will not be taken into account in relation to the calculation of overtime hours worked
or other pay allowances. It will be subject to tax, NI and pension contributions in the normal
way. The pay supplement will apply for a period of xxx years, and subject to review at the end of
this period. Should the pay supplement be withdrawn at the time of review, 12 months’ notice
of this will be given in writing.

Head of Service
Printed name: Date:

Signature:

Head of HR
Printed name: Date:

Signature:

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council age 42 of 63

TudaIP n1l26




APPENDIX H

Recruitment of Chief Executive £ i i vori ot
and Chief Officers Officer
Employment Procedure Rules

Human Resources

U0V A Council

3rd September
DATE 2014

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council Page 43 of 63

Tudalen127



Contents
1 Officer Employment Procedure Rules
2 Recruitment and Appointment
3 Recruitment of Chief Officers
4 Appointment of Monitoring Officer and Deputy Chief Officers
5 Other Appointments

Page

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council

Tudaf

age 44 of 63

nl28




1. OFFICER EMPLOYMENT PROCEDURE RULES

These Rules are designed to conform with the requirements of the Local Authorities
(Standing Orders) (Wales) Regulations 2006 (“the Regulations”) as amended by the
Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2014 (“the
Amending Regulations”). Some of the Rules are also locally determined but in the
event of any conflict with the Regulations, the latter shall prevail. The Rules covered
by the Regulations cannot be amended other than by legislation. These Rules need to
be read in conjunction with the full Regulations and Amending Regulations, copies of
which are available from Legal Services.

In these Rules, the following terms have the meaning prescribed by the Regulations:

(a) “Chief Officer” means the Head of its Paid Service ; a statutory Chief Officer
in paragraph (a), (c) or (d) of Section 2(6) of the Local Government and Housing
Act 1989 (“the 1989 Act”); a non-statutory Chief Officer within the meaning of
Section 2(7) of the 1989 Act above; the Monitoring Officer and Head of
Democratic Services; and any reference to an appointment or purported
appointment of a Chief Officer includes a reference to the engagement or
purported engagement of such an Officer under a contract of employment.

(b) “Head of Paid Service” means the officer designated under Section 4(1) of
the 1989 Act.

(c) “Chief Finance Officer” means the officer having responsibility for the
purposes of Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972.

(d) “Monitoring Officer” means the officer designated under Section 5(1) of the
1989 Act.

(e) “Head of Democratic Service” means the officer designated under Section 8
of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011.

(f) “Deputy Chief Officer” means a person within the meaning of Section 2(8) of
the 1989 Act.

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council Page 45 of 63

Tudalen129



(g) “disciplinary action” in relation to a member of staff of the Council means
any action occasioned by alleged misconduct which, if proved, would, according
to the usual practice of the Council, be recorded on the member of staff’s
personal file, and includes any proposal for dismissal of a member of staff for
any reason other than redundancy, permanent ill-health or infirmity of mind or
body, but does not include failure to renew a contract of employment for a
fixed term. !

(h) “member of staff “ means a person appointed to or holding a paid office or
employment, under the Council.

(i) “remuneration” has the same meaning as in Section 43(43) of the Localism
Act 2011

2. RECRUITMENT AND APPOINTMENT

1.1 Declarations

The Council will require any candidate for appointment to state in writing
whether they are the parent, grandparent, partner, child, stepchild, adopted
child, grandchild, brother, sister, uncle, aunt, nephew or niece of an existing
councillor or senior officer of the Council at Head of Service level or above; or
of the partner of such persons.

2.2 Seeking support for appointment.

2.2.1. The Council will disqualify any applicant who directly or indirectly seeks the
support of any officer involved in the appointments process (other than as
referee) or councillor, for any appointment with the Council. The content of this
paragraph will be included in any recruitment information.

2.2.2. No councillor will seek support for any person for any appointment with the
Council.

2.2.3. No councillor shall give a written or oral testimonial of the candidate’s ability,
experience or character for submission to the Council with an application for an
appointment.

! This definition derives from Regulation 2 of the Regulations

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council age 46 of 63

Tudalén130



3. RECRUITMENT OF CHIEF OFFICERS

2.1.  Where the Council propose to appoint a Chief Officer within the terms of the
Regulations and the remuneration which it proposes to pay to the Chief Officer
is £100,000 or more per annum it shall take the steps set out in paragraph
3.2.3.

3.2. Where the Council proposes to appoint a Chief Officer and where it is not
proposed to pay to the Chief Officer the remuneration mentioned in paragraph
3.1. and it is not proposed that the appointment be made exclusively from
among its existing officers it shall take the steps set out in paragraph 3.2.3.

3.2.3. The Council shall:-
(a) draw up a statement specifying —

(i) the duties of the officer concerned, and
(ii) any qualifications or qualities to be sought in the person to be
appointed

(b) make arrangements for the post to be advertised in such a way as is
likely to bring it to the attention of persons who are qualified to apply
forit and

(c) make arrangements for a copy of the statement mentioned in
paragraph (a) to be sent to any person on request.

3.2.4. The requirement to advertise contained in paragraph 3.2.3. (b) does not
apply where the proposed appointment under paragraph 3.1. is for a
period of no longer than twelve months.

3.3.1. Where the Chief Executive (acting on the advice of the Head of Human
Resources) considers that the number of qualified applicants for a
vacancy make it difficult for the Special Appointments Committee to
prepare a final shortlist for consideration by Council then the Chief
Executive may compile and submit an initial list of qualified applicants
for consideration by the Special Appointments Committee.

3.3.2. In exercising the delegation set out in rule 3.3.1. the Chief Executive
shall consider the views of the Head of Human Resources, the Leader
of Council and the Leader of the largest non-executive political group.

3.3.3. In cases other than as set out in Rule 3.3.1. the Chief Executive shall
refer all qualified applicants to the Special Appointments Committee.

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council Page 47 of 63

Tudalen131



3.3.4. The Special Appointments Committee shall either:-

(a) Refer all qualified applicants submitted to it by the Chief Executive to full
Council for selection, or

(b) Compile a shortlist of qualified applicants from the qualified applicants
submitted to it by the Chief Executive and refer that shortlist to full
Council for selection.

3.4. The Special Appointments Committee shall be constituted in accordance with the

3.5.

3.6.

3.7.

3.8

3.9.

provisions of Paragraph 4 (2) of Part 2 of Schedule 3 of the Regulations —
which means that at least one member of the executive must be a member of
that Committee, but not more than half of the members of the Committee
are to be members of the executive.

The Council shall interview all applicants referred to it for interview by the
Special Appointments Committee in accordance with Paragraph 3.3.4.

Where no qualified person has applied, or if the Council decides to re-
advertise the appointment, the Council may make further arrangements for
advertisement in accordance with procedure rule 2.2(b).

Where the duties of a chief officer include the discharge of functions of two or
more relevant authorities in pursuance of section 101(5) of the Local
Government Act 1972 or section 20 Local Government Act 2000 and the
authorities have agreed that it will be a joint appointment -

3.7.1 the steps taken under paragraph 3.2.3., 3.3.4,, 3.5. and 3.6. above may

be taken by a joint committee of those relevant authorities, a
subcommittee of that committee or a chief officer of any of the
relevant authorities concerned.

3.7.2  Any chief officer may be appointed by such a joint committee, a sub-

committee of that committee or a committee or sub-committee of any
of those relevant authorities.

The Council shall determine the level, and any change in the level, of
remuneration to be paid to a Chief Officer

The full Council shall make all decisions relating to the appointment of the
Head of Paid Service.

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council

age 48 of 63

TudaIPen132




4. APPOINTMENT OF MONITORING OFFICER AND DEPUTY CHIEF OFFICERS

41 The Special Appointments Committee will shortlist applicants and appoint the
Monitoring Officer and Deputy Chief Officers (i.e. in Neath Port Talbot the
Heads of Service). The relevant Regulatory Committee Chair may also attend
the Committee in an advisory capacity.

4.2 The Special Appointments Committee shall be constituted in accordance with
the provisions of Paragraph 4 (2) of Part 2 of Schedule 3 of the Regulations —
which means that at least one member of the executive must be a member of
that Committee, but not more than half of the members of the Committee
are to be members of the executive.

5. OTHER APPOINTMENTS

5.1 The function of appointment of a member of staff of the Council (other than
Chief Officers, Deputy Chief Officers, and persons to whom regulations made
under Section 35(4) and (5) of the Education Act 2002 apply — teachers and
other staff of schools) must be discharged, on behalf of the Council, by the
Head of Paid Service or by an officer nominated by the Head of Paid Service.
Accordingly, the following shortlisting and appointment arrangements shall
apply in respect of all appointments below Deputy Chief Officer level:

Posts Method

With pay scale commencing

at scp 39 and above, or Chief Officer or Deputy
equivalent. Chief Officer

With pay scale commencing Chief Officer or Deputy

at scp 38 and below, or Chief Officer or Accountable
equivalent Manager or Line Manager

Other appointment provisions

5.2 The starting salary for all posts, other than those graded in accordance with
salary scale 1, will normally be at the minimum point of the scale, but the
starting point may be other than the minimum at the discretion of the
authorised Officer making the appointment.

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council Page 49 of 63

Tudalen133



5.3 For appointments of:-

5.3.1. Officers and Assistant Officers in Charge of Residential children’s
establishments and

5.3.2. basic grade social workers working with children,

these appointments are to be carried out by a Panel of three Officers in
accordance with the recommendations as set out in the Adrianne Jones
and Warner Reports.

5.4 For joint appointments with schools, representative Headteachers will be
involved in the appointment at shortlisting and interview stages.

5.5  The Director of Education, Leisure and Lifelong Learning is also required to give
statutory advice to School Governing Bodies on the appointment and dismissal
of persons to whom regulations made under section 35(4) and (5) of the
Education Act 2002 apply.

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council age 50 of 63

TudaIPen134




APPENDIX |

ER/VR/CR Scheme =8 el e PortTalbot

(County Barough Coundl Cyngor Berdeistrel Sinol

Human Resources

Personnel

APPROVED BY .
Committee

DL.YNN 15/10/2018

EDITION/VERSION JE}

AV [Nyl 31/03/2022

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council Page 51 of 63

Tudalen135



Contents

1 Scope
2 Voluntary Redundancy (VR)
3 Early Retirement (ER)
4 Flexible Retirement
5 Compulsory Redundancy (CR)
6 Scheme Payments, Costs and Funding (ER/VR/CR)
7 Post Employment Notice Pay (PENP)
7 Other ER/VR/CR Provisions
8 Notes
Appendices
A Statutory Redundancy Table
B 45 Week Discretionary Compensation Payments Table
C Business Case — Voluntary Redundancy

Page

A b A W W w

10-13

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council age 52 of 63

Tudalén136




1. SCOPE

This Scheme is applicable to all NPT Council employees, excluding Teachers.

2. VOLUNTARY REDUNDANCY (VR)

The Council may, from time to time, in accordance with the needs of the service and
within a specified period, invite expressions of interest in voluntary redundancy (VR) as
part of its Workforce Strategy to reduce employee costs. It is unlikely that all
volunteers will be allowed to leave the Council’'s employment under this Scheme as
the Council will have an ongoing need to retain employees with the necessary skills
and competencies to both deliver and transform a range of services.

The Council will consider “bumped” redundancies, where appropriate. In these
circumstances, employees may apply for voluntary redundancy, thereby making
available their post for employees with transferable skills whose job has or will
become redundant and who do not wish to leave the employment of the Council. Such
“bumping” of a redundancy will be considered across service areas, with appropriate
funding arrangements being agreed by the Heads of Service or Head teachers involved.

All VR expressions of interest will be considered at management’s sole discretion,
based on a robust business case (including the cost of any consequential
organisational/pay grade changes). All VR expressions of interest will need to be
authorised by the relevant Head of Service and Directorate Management Team.

The Council’s grievance procedure will not apply in the case of VR, but the Head of
Human Resources has an advisory and monitoring role in this respect.

3. EARLY RETIREMENT (ER)

Applications for Early Retirement (ER), where a job loss does not take place, will be
granted in exceptional circumstances only, and on the basis of “in the interests of
efficiency of the service” (due to the range of alternative, and usually more cost-
effective, measures available to manage capability issues). All such ER decisions will be
subject to a robust business case (including the cost of any consequential
organisational/pay grade changes) being approved by the relevant Head of Service and
Directorate Management Team, or Head teacher and School Governing Body, as
appropriate.

The Council’s grievance procedure will not apply in the case of ER, but the Head of
Human Resources has an advisory and monitoring role in this respect.

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council Page 53 of 63

Tudalen137



4. FLEXIBLE RETIREMENT

The Council’s Flexible Retirement Policy will remain available to eligible employees
alongside this ER/VR/CR Scheme.

5. COMPULSORY REDUNDANCY (CR)

It is the Council’s policy to prevent compulsory redundancies from arising to the
greatest extent possible. However, where unavoidable, selection for compulsory
redundancy (CR) will take place in accordance with relevant management of change
and associated employment policies.

6. SCHEME PAYMENTS, COSTS AND FUNDING (ER/VR/CR)

VR and CR Payments

Subject to the total cost to the Council of early release of pension and/or severance
payment being limited to the equivalent of 52 weeks’ pay for the employee
concerned (see Note 1), the following provisions will apply in cases of Voluntary
Redundancy (VR) and Compulsory Redundancy (CR):

early release of pension for “qualifying” employees (see Note 2);

lump sum statutory redundancy payment (see Note 3), using the 30 week Statutory
Redundancy table (Appendix A);

Lump sum discretionary compensation payment, using the Council’s 45 week table
(Appendix B), (reduced by the statutory redundancy payment referred to above).

Where the total cost of early access to pension and the cost of statutory redundancy
payments equates to more than 52 weeks’ pay, the payback period may be extended
“up to 104 weeks”, but subject to only early access to pension plus statutory
redundancy pay being applicable (i.e. no discretionary severance payment)

ER Payments

Subject to the total cost to the Council of early release of pension being limited to
the equivalent of 52 weeks’ pay (see Note 1), the following will apply in cases of Early
Retirement (ER): Early release of pension for “qualifying” employees (see Note 2).

ER, VR and CR Funding

Early retirement, statutory redundancy and discretionary compensation payment costs
will all be met by the employing Directorate, with the exception of school Governing
Bodies where the costs will be met from a separately identified element of schools’
delegated budgets.

Any severance package in respect of early termination of employment that exceeds a
threshold of £100,000 must be approved beforehand by Full Council.

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council age 54 of 63

Tudalén138



7. POST EMPLOYMENT NOTICE PAY (PENP)

With effect from 6t April 2018, the HMRC has changed the way employers must deal with
termination payments.

The changes introduce the concept of post—-employment notice pay (PENP), which represents the
amount of basic pay the employee will not receive because their employment was terminated
without full notice being given. PENP is calculated by applying a formula for the total amount of
the payment, or benefits paid in connection with the termination of employment. This element
of the payment will be subject to tax and National Insurance Contributions (NICs). Any remaining
balance of the termination payment, which is not a PENP may be included within the overall
£30,000 exemption for tax purposes and is free from NICs.

What this means for employees considering taking VR is if the contractual notice is worked, then
no tax and national insurance would be deducted from the VR payment. However, if the
contractual notice period is not worked then tax and national insurance would be deducted from
the VR payment, at an amount depending on the termination date and the date the VR
acceptance is signed.

This change applies to payments, or benefits received on, or after, 6 April 2018 in circumstances
where the employment also ended on, or after, 6 April 2018.

Further guidance is available by visiting:-

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/new-rules-for-taxation-of-termination-payments

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council Page 55 of 63

Tudalen139


https://www.gov.uk/government/news/new-rules-for-taxation-of-termination-payments

7. OTHER ER/VR/CR PROVISIONS

In cases of compulsory redundancy (CR), there will be a presumption that employees
will continue to be employed during the statutory notice period, particularly as this will
maximise the prospects of potential redeployment. Employees in this situation must
arrange to take any outstanding annual leave during the notice period but, if not
practicable and certified accordingly by the relevant Head of Service, an employee will
be paid for any untaken annual leave which remains outstanding on expiry of the
notice period. Any annual leave entitlement exceeded will be recovered from pay.
Exceptionally, pay in lieu of notice, which is subject to tax and National Insurance, may
be granted.

Employees leaving the Council’s employment on the grounds of ER or VR will do so on
the basis of a mutually agreed termination date, with no notice period being
applicable on either side and with no extra payment being made for any outstanding
holidays, time off in lieu or flexi leave.

Employees who leave the Council’s employment on the grounds of early retirement
(ER) or voluntary redundancy (VR) who are employed on LGS Grades 11, 12 and 13 or
equivalent, will not normally not be permitted to return to any paid temporary or
permanent NPT Council employment (which includes schools) or be re-engaged as an
agency worker or on a consultancy basis. However, in exceptional circumstances, re-
employment may be permitted if the “employing” Head of Service is able to provide a
robust business case for doing so which is acceptable to the Director of Finance &
Corporate Services and Head of Human Resources, in consultation with the relevant
trade union/s.

All other employees who leave the Council’s employment on the grounds of early
retirement (ER) or voluntary redundancy (VR) will not be permitted to return to
employment with the Council for a period of 12 months following their leaving date.
However, in exceptional circumstances, earlier re-employment may be permitted if the
“employing” Head of Service is able to provide a robust business case for doing so
which is acceptable to the Director of Finance & Corporate Services and Head of
Human Resources, in consultation with the relevant trade union/s.

8. NOTES

Note 1: All employees who are made redundant are entitled to a statutory redundancy
payment (see Note 3 below).

“Qualifying” employees are also entitled to early release of pension if their
employment is terminated on the grounds of redundancy (or in the interest of
efficiency of the service). Statutory redundancy payments may be enhanced through
the payment of discretionary compensation payments and will be calculated having
regard to the total cost of:

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council age 56 of 63

TudaIPen14O



(a) early release of pension,

(b) statutory redundancy payments and

(c) discretionary compensation payments not exceeding - in total — the
equivalent of 52 weeks’ pay for the employee concerned.

For example, where an employee’s entitlement under the 45 week table takes the
total cost above the value of his/her annual pay, the number of weeks of redundancy
and/or discretionary compensation payments and/or the weekly pay calculator rate
will be adjusted downwards as necessary.

The definition of a “week’s pay” will be in accordance with statutory provisions for
redundancy pay calculation purposes.

In summary, this will be the gross amount payable for a week’s work in accordance
with the employee’s contract of employment as applicable on the “calculation date”,
which will be the pay period immediately preceding the first day of his/her notice
period. If an employee’s remuneration is variable, a 12 weekly average will be
calculated. Sections 220 to 229 and Section 234 of ERA 1996 further define the
calculation of a “week’s pay”.

Note 2: “Qualifying” generally means aged 55 years, or over, with 3 months’
membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). The definition of
“qualifying” is covered by LGPS Regulations and may change as a result of future
legislative changes.

Note 3: To use the statutory redundancy table in Appendix A, firstly look up the
employee’s age and number of years’ continuous service with the Council (& its
predecessor authorities). Where the two intersect on the table, this is the number of
weeks’ pay which becomes payable. The “week’s pay” to be used to calculate the lump
sum statutory redundancy payment will be in accordance with statutory provisions
(maximum of £508 per week with effect from 6™ April 2018).

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council

W

7

=]

f63
fen141

=




Appendix A
STATUTORY REDUNDANCY TABLE

Age| 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 |10 |11 |12 |13 (14 |15 | 16 |17 |18 |19 | 20
17 | 1 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
18 | 1 |1 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
19 | 1 |12 | 2 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
20 (1 |1V 2 |2V | - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
21 [ 1 |1Va| 2 |2V 3 - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
22 [ 1 |1Va] 2 |2V | 3 |[3Ve| - - - - - - - - - - - - -
23 (Ve | 2 |2V | 3 |3V | 4 | 42| - - - - - - - - - - - -
29 [ 2 2% )| 3 |3 | 4 (44| & |G| - - - - - - - - - - -
25 | 2 3 |32 4 44| 5 |5Ve| 6 |6V2) - - - - - - - - - -
26 | 2 3 4 |42 5 |5V | 6 |6Va| 7 |TV2| - - - - - - - - -
27 | 2 3 4 51542 6 (6| 7 |7V 8 |84 - - - - - - - -
28 | 2 3 4 5 6 [6Ve| 7 |72 B8 |B¥| 9 (9| - - - - - - -
29 | 2 3 4 5 6 7 |7ve| 8 |82 9 |9%v:| 10 (10| - - - - - -
30 | 2 3 4 5 6 7 B (84] 9 |9% | 10 |10 11 |11V - - - - -
31| 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 |9z | 10 |10%2| 11 |11%e| 12 [12V2| - - - -
32 ( 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 | 10 1072 11 |11%| 12 |12%2| 13 [13V2| - - -
33| 2 3 4 = 6 7 8 9 |10 | 11 |11ve| 12 (12| 13 |13V 14 (1412 - -
34 (| 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 |10 | 11 | 12 |12%%] 13 |13%2| 14 [14V%| 15 |15V%| -
33 | 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 |10 | 11 | 12 | 13 (132 14 |14%2) 15 |15V 16 (162
a6 | 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 |10 |11 | 12 | 13 | 14 |14%%| 15 |151%] 16 |16V%| 17
37| 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 |10 | 11 | 12 | 13 | 14 | 15 |15%2) 16 |16V 17 (17
38 | 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 |10 |11 |12 | 13 | 14 | 15 | 16 |16V2| 17 |17'=| 1B
39 | 2 3 4 = 6 7 8 9 |10 |11 |12 | 13 | 14 | 15 | 16 | 17 |(17V=z| 18 |18V
40 | 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 |10 |11 |12 | 13 |14 | 15| 16 | 17 | 18 |18'%] 19
41 | 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 |10 |11 |12 | 13 |14 | 15 | 16 | 17 | 18 | 19 (192

42 (22 | 3Va |4 |5Ve | 6Ve | 7Ve [ 8V | OV |10V2|11V2(12V2(13V2(14Y2|15%2|162 |17z (182 (1912(20

43 | 3 4 5 [ 7 8 9 10 j 11 |12 |13 |14 [ 15 | 16 | 17 | 18 | 19 | 20 | 21
44 | 3 |4 |50 |6V | e | 8V (9 |10V2|11V2 |12V (1302 (142 (1572|1672 |1 712|182 (19 (2012(211s
45 3 |44 ) 6 7 8 9 10 | 11 |12 |13 (14 [ 15 |16 | 17 | 18 | 19 | 20 | 21 | 22
46 | 3 |4 6 |7V | 8Ye | 9Ve (10V2|11V2|12V2|13V2 (14V2 (152 (16V2|1712|18YV2|19Y2 (20Ve |(211/2(2215
47 | 3 || 6 |7V 9 10 |11 |12 |13 |14 |15 |16 |17 |18 |19 |20 | 21 | 22 | 23
48 | 2 |4L | 6 |7 | 9 (10V2(11%|12%2|13V2|14%2(15V2(16V2(1712|18Y2|19V2|20V2 (212 (221/2(2315
49 ( 3 (4% | 6 |7V | 9 (10%2| 12 | 13 | 14 |15 (16 (17 (18 | 19 | 20 | 21 | 22 | 23 | 24
50 (| 3 (4| 6 |7 | 9 (10Ve| 12 |13V|14V2|15V2(16V2(1712(18Y2|19142|20V2 |21V (224 (23142 (2415
91 | 3 |48 6 |7V | 9 (10%2| 12 |13%) 15 |16 |17 [ 18 (19 | 20 | 21 | 22 | 23 | 24 | 25
92 | 3 |46 6 |7V | 9 (10%| 12 |13%2] 15 |16V2(17V2(18Y2(19Y2|20V2|212|22V2(23Ve |24/2(2514
533 | 3 (4| 6 |7 | 9 (10%=| 12 |13%| 15 |16V 18 | 19 (20 | 21 | 22 | 23 (24 | 25 | 26
94 | 2 |4A)| 6 |7 | 9 (10%=| 12 |13%] 15 |16z 18 (19V2(20V2|2112|22V4|23Ve (242 |251/2(26VR
23 | 3 |4% | 6 |72 | 9 (10%2| 12 |13%2) 15 |16%z( 18 (192 21 | 22 | 23 | 24 | 25 | 26 | 27
56 | 3 (4| 6 |7 | 9 (10%| 12 |13%) 15 |16Vz| 18 (19Ve| 21 |2214|23V0 |24V (252 (2612|271
97 | 3 |4A) 6 |7V | 9 (10%2| 12 |13%) 15 |16%Vz| 18 [19%=2| 21 |22%%) 24 | 25 | 26 | 27 | 28
o8 | 3 |4 6 |7V | 9 (10%| 12 |13%2] 15 |16Vz2| 18 (19V=| 21 |22Va| 24 |25V2(26Ve |271/2(2815
59 | 3 |4 | 6 |7V | 9 (10%=| 12 |13%| 15 |16V2| 18 (19%=| 21 |2274| 24 |25V 27 | 28 | 29
60 | 2 (4L 6 |7 | 9 (10%=| 12 |13%] 15 |16V 18 (19V=| 21 |22V4| 24 |25Ve| 27 (2812(29
61+ 3 (42| 6 |7V 9 |10Vz 12 (13%2| 15 |16Vz 18 |19z 21 |22%2| 24 |25V:| 27 |28V2| 30

Department for Business, Innovation and Skills URN 09/1371

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council age 58 of 63

TudaIPen142



Appendix B

45 WEEK DISCRETIONARY COMPENSATION PAYMENTS TABLE

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20
17 150
18] 150 225
1o 150 225 3.0
20 150] 225 3.0 375
21 sl 225 300 375 450
22| 150 225 300 375|450 525
23| 225 300 375 450 525 e00] 675
24 3.00 375 450 525 600 675 750 825
25| 3.00] 450 525 6.00] 675  7.50] 825  9.00] 975
26 3.00] 450 600 675 750  825] 9.0 975 1050 11.25
27 300 450 600l 750 825  9.00] 9.75] 10.50] 11.25] 12.00] 1275
28] 3.00] 450 600 750 9.00]  9.75] 10.50] 11.2s] 12.00] 12.75] 13.50] 14.25
29| 300 450 600 750 9.00] 1050 11.2s] 12.00] 12.75] 13.50] 14.25] 15.00] 15.75
30 300 450 600 750 9.00] 1050 12.00] 12.75] 13.50] 14.25] 15.00] 15.75] 1650 17.25
31 300 450 600 750  9.00] 10.50] 12.00] 1350 14.25] 1500 1575] 1650 17.25] 18.00] 18.75
32| 300 450 600 750 9.00] 1050 12.00] 1350 1500 1575] 1650 17.25] 18.00] 1875 1950 20.25
33 300 450 600 750 9.00] 1050 12.00] 1350 1500 1650 17.25] 18.00] 1875 1950 2025 2100 21.75
34 300 450 600 750  9.00] 10.50[ 12.00[ 13.50] 15.00] 16.50] 18.00 18.75] 19.50] 2025 2100 21.75] 22.50] 2325
35| 3.00 450 600 750 9.00] 1050 12.00] 1350 1500 1650 18.00] 1950 2025 2100 2175 2250 2325 2400 2475
36| 3.00 450 600 750 900 1050 12.00] 1350 1500 1650 18.00] 1950 2100 2175 2250 2325 24.00 2475 2550
371 300 450 600 750 900 1050 12.00] 1350 1500 1650 18.00 1950 2100 2250 2325 24.00 2475 2550 2625
38  3.00] 450 600 750 9.00] 1050 12.00] 1350 1500 1650 18.00 1950 2100 2250 2400 2475 2550 2625 27.00
39 300 450 600 750 9.00] 1050 12.00] 1350 1500 1650 18.00 1950 2100 2250 2400 2550 2625 27.00[ 2775
40 300 450 600 750  9.00] 10.50] 12.00[ 13.50] 15.00] 16.50] 18.00 19.50] 21.00] 2250 24.00] 25.50] 27.00] 27.75]  28.50
41 300 450 600 750  9.00] 1050 12.00] 1350 1500 1650 18.00] 1950 2100 2250 24.00 2550 27.00 2850 2925
42| 375 525 675|  82s|  95| 1125|1275 142s| 1575|1725 18.75] 2025 2175|2325 24.75] 2625] 27.75]  29.25[ 30.75
43| 450 600 750  9.00] 1050 12.00] 1350 1500 1650 18.00 1950 2100 2250 24.00 2550 27.00 2850 30.00[ 3150
44| 450 675 825 95| 11.25] 12.75] 1425 1575 1725 18.75] 2025 21.75] 2325 2475 2625 27.75] 2925 30.75] 3225
45| 450 675 9.00] 10.50] 12.00] 1350 15.00] 1650 18.00 1950 2100 2250 24.00 2550 27.00 2850 30.00[ 3150 33.00
46] 450 675 900 11.25] 1275 1425 1575 1725 18.75] 2025 21.75] 2325 2475 2625 2775 29.25[ 30.75] 3225[ 3375
47 450 675 9.00] 11.25] 1350 15.00] 16.50] 18.00] 1950 2100 2250 24.00 2550 27.00 2850 30.00] 3150 33.00 3450
48] 450 675  9.00] 11.25] 1350 1575] 17.25] 1875|2025 21.75| 2325 24.75] 2625 27.75] 2925 30.75] 3225] 33.75] 3525
49| 450 675 900 11.25] 1350 15.75] 18.00] 1950 2100 2250 2400 2550 27.00 2850 30.00] 3150 33.00 3450 36.00
50| 450 675  9.00] 11.25] 1350 1575 18.00] 2025 21.75] 2325 24.75] 2625 27.75] 2925 30.75] 3225[ 33.75] 3525[ 36.75
51l 450 675  9.00] 11.25] 1350 1575] 18.00] 2025 2250 24.00 2550 27.00 2850 30.00] 3150 33.00 3450 36.00[ 3750
52| 450 675  9.00] 11.25] 1350 1575] 18.00] 2025 2250 2475 2625 27.75] 2925 30.75] 3225[ 33.75] 3525] 36.75] 3825
53| 450 675] 900 112s] 13.50] 15.75[ 18.00[ 2025 22.50] 24.75[ 27.00 28.50] 30.00] 3150 33.00[ 34.50] 36.00] 3750 39.00
54| 450 675 9.00] 11.25] 1350 15.75]  18.00] 2025 2250 2475 27.00] 2925 30.75] 3225 33.75] 3525] 36.75] 3825[ 39.75
55| 450 675 9.00] 11.2s] 1350 1575] 18.00] 2025 2250 2475 27.00] 2925 3150 33.00 3450 3600 3750 39.00 40.50
56| 450 675 9.00] 11.25] 1350 15.75] 18.00] 2025 2250 2475 27.00] 2925 3150 33.75] 3525 36.75] 38.25] 39.75] 4125
571 450 675]  9.00] 11.25] 1350 1575] 18.00] 2025 2250 2475 27.00] 2925 3150 3375 36.00 3750 39.00 4050 42.00
s8] 450 675  9.00] 11.25] 1350 1575] 18.00] 2025 2250 2475 27.00] 2925 3150 33.75] 3600 3825[ 39.75] 4125 4275
5o 450 675 900 112s] 13.50] 15.75[ 18.00[ 2025 22.50] 24.75[ 27.00 2925 31.50] 33.75[ 36.00] 38.25] 40.50] 42.00] 43.50
60| 450 675 9.00] 11.25] 1350 15.75]  18.00] 20.25] 2250 24.75] 27.00] 2925 3150 33.75] 36.00] 3825] 4050 42.75] 4425
61 450 675  9.00] 11.25] 1350 15.75] 18.00] 20.25] 2250 2475 27.00] 2925 3150 3375 36.00] 3825] 4050 4275 45.00
62| 450 675  9.00] 11.25] 1350 1575] 18.00] 2025 2250 2475 27.00] 2925 3150 3375 36.00] 3825 4050 4275 45.00
63| 450 675 9.00] 11.25] 1350 1575] 18.00] 2025 2250 2475 27.00] 2925 3150 3375 36.00] 3825 4050 4275 45.00
64 450 675  9.00] 11.25] 1350 1575] 18.00] 2025] 2250 2475 27.00] 2925 3150 3375 3600 3825 4050 4275 45.00

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council Page 5

Tudalen143




APPENDIX C

Business Case —

i Neath Port Talbot
~# (astell-nedd Port Talbot

County Borough Coundl Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol

Voluntary Redundancy

Human Resources

TO BE COMPLETED BY MANAGEMENT

BUSINESS CASE — VOLUNTARY REDUNDANCY

Part A — Introduction

advisory and monitoring role.

HR Officer.

1. All decisions concerning voluntary redundancy are subject to a business case being
approved by the “employing” Head of Service. The Head of Human Resources has an

2. Once Parts B-E have been completed, this form should be forwarded to your designated

3. All requests for Pensions estimates must be sent to the City & County of Swansea Pension
Section by HR/Payroll, not by the individual or his/her line manager

Part B — Employee Details

Full Name

Job Title and
Workplace

Directorate

National Insurance
Number

Post Reference
Number

Payroll Number

Date of Birth

Proposed Leaving
Date

Part C — Further Required Information

Please explain how it is proposed that the service area concerned will operate in future if
this employee (and any other(s)) leaves the Council’s employment in accordance with this
Scheme. Full supporting details to be attached.

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council age 60 of 63

TudalP nl44




If this business case is supported, will Yes No
the person qualify for the early
payment of their pension benefits?
(see Note 2 of Transitional VR Scheme)

Leaving Reason
Please tick the relevant box below to confirm which Leaving Reason this employee’s
employment will be terminated on:-

VOLUNTARY REDUNDANCY Yes No
VR — WITH SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT Yes No
VR - BUMPED REDUNDANCY Yes No

(Please state which post/grade on
structure is being deleted):

VR — BUMPED REDUNDANCY WITH Yes No
SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT
(Please state which post/grade on
structure is being deleted

Part D - Declaration

1. | have not made, and will not make, an agreement with this employee concerning
re-employment by the Council in any paid capacity.

2. My support for this application is not as a result of any capability or disciplinary
issues or concerns in relation to this employee

3. There are no outstanding concerns or formal processes regarding this employee’s
ability to attend work on a regular basis;

4. The savings which will accrue from implementation of this business case cannot be
achieved in a different way through the non-filling of vacancies, or known leavers,
and no suitable alternative employment is available within the Council for this
employee;

5. This business case is supported by the relevant Directorate Management Team, as
appropriate, and has been recorded accordingly.

Signed Date
Head of Service

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council Page 61 of |63

Tudalen145




If you cannot give this declaration, please state the reason below:

Part E — Fixed Term or Temporary Employees

Is the employee engaged on a Yes No
temporary or fixed term contract?
If yes, please give start and end dates Start Date: End Date:
and state whether grant-funded.

Part F - Value of 52 weeks’ pay — HR to complete from database

Value of 52 weeks’ pay is £

Part G — Costs for Voluntary Redundancy — HR to complete from database

Cost Centre Code

Cost of Early Release of £
Pension

Statutory Redundancy £
Payment

Discretionary Compensation | £
payment (reduced by (2)
above)

Total Cost £

The total cost under (G) must not exceed the cost under (F).
If (G) exceeds (F) the Discretionary Compensation payment must be reduced.

****where the total cost of early access to pension and the cost of statutory redundancy
payments equates to more than 52 weeks’ pay, the payback period may be extended “up
to 104 weeks”, but subject to only early access to pension plus statutory redundancy pay
being applicable (i.e. no discretionary severance payment) If the lump sum Discretionary
Compensation payment becomes zero, and (G) is still larger than (F), the weekly rate will
be reduced until (G) = (F) subject to the £508 per week provision not being contravened.
If this condition still cannot be met, the application for voluntary redundancy will be
refused.

Part | — Business Case Approval

Head of Service (or Director,
where a Head of Service is
the subject of this approval)

Approved Not Approved

Signed Date

age 62 of 63

TudalP n1l46

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council



ADMINISTRATIVE CHECKLIST FOR HR

Employee expresses an interest in voluntary redundancy

Head of Service has agreed that the post can be “lost”

HR Officer updates VR database and sends request to Payroll

Payroll Officer emails request/s for estimates of benefits to Pension Section (if
over 55)

Estimate of Benefits received from Pension Section

Copy of Estimate given to employee (and Line Manager if necessary). Retain one
copy on file.

Outcome discussed with employee and he/she confirms they wish to leave on
grounds of VR

Business Case to be completed by HR and Head of Service, for signature

Head of Service returns Business Case signed and HR Officer issues letter offering
VR

HR Officer to remind Line Manager to make suitable arrangements about the
employee’s leaving date, outstanding annual leave etc.

HR Officer to “terminate” employee on Vision

HR Officer to send memo to Pensions and Payroll regarding termination. Include a
copy of the offer letter. Pensions to process termination.

Copy of all documents retained on iDocs

HR Officer to complete Post Details Form with Post Reference, Number of Hours
and JEID and discuss with Workforce Information Team to ensure correct post is
being disestablished/bumped redundancy/restructure

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council Page 63 of |63

Tudalen147




Mae'r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



6y TUs|epn.L

Impact Assessment - First Stage

1. Details of the initiative

Initiative description and summary: Approval of the Council’s Pay Policy Statement for 2020 / 2021

Service Area: All Council Employees.

Directorate: All

2. Does the initiative affect:

Yes No
Service users X
Staff X
Wider community X
Internal administrative process only X

3. Does the initiative impact on people because of their:

Yes | No | None/ Don’t | Impact | Reasons for your decision (including evidence)/How
Negligible | Know | H/M/L | might it impact?

Age X The approval of the Statement does not have an impact

Disability X on protected characteristics, as it simply

Gender Reassignment X reflects pay decisions already made, and which will have
been subject to a full impact assessment (for example, a

Marriage/Civil Partnership X full Equality Impact Assessment was carried out last

Pregnancy/Maternity X year in relation to the introduction of the Council’s

Race X revised LGS pay spine, and this was shared and
scrutinised by the trade unions (at a National level). The

Religion/Belief X Statement for 2020 / 2021 does not introduce any

Sex X changes to pay or conditions of service.

X

Sexual orientation




0GTusepnL

4. Does the initiative impact on:

Yes | No | None/ Don’t | Impact | Reasons for your decision (including evidence used) /
Negligible | know | H/M/L | How might it impact?
People’s opportunities X
to use the Welsh
language
Treating the Welsh X The Statement, once approved by Members, will be
language no less translated into Welsh and made publicly available in Welsh.
favourably than English
5. Does the initiative impact on biodiversity:
Yes | No | None/ Don’t | Impact | Reasons for your decision (including evidence) /
Negligible | know | HHM/L | How might it impact?
To maintain and X
enhance biodiversity
To promote the
resilience of
ecosystems, i.e.
supporting protection of X

the wider environment,
such as air quality, flood
alleviation, etc.




1GTusepnL

6. Does the initiative embrace the sustainable development principle (5 ways of working):

Yes

No

Details

Long term - how the initiative
supports the long term well-being of
people

N/A

Integration - how the initiative
impacts upon our wellbeing
objectives

N/A

Involvement - how people have
been involved in developing the
initiative

N/A

Collaboration - how we have worked
with other services/organisations to
find shared sustainable solutions

N/A

Prevention - how the initiative will
prevent problems occurring or getting
worse

N/A




¢qTusepnL

7. Declaration - based on above assessment (tick as appropriate):

A full impact assessment (second stage) is not required X

Reasons for this conclusion

A full impact is not required as there is no impact on any protected group as a result of this report — the Pay
Policy Statement reflects pay decision already taken, and is simply a statement summarising those decisions. It
also has no negative impact on bio-diversity or the Welsh Language. However, it should be noted that, in
determining pay and remuneration, the Council complies with relevant employment legislation, including the
Equality Act 2010, the Part Time Employment (Prevention of Less Favourable Treatment) Regulations 2000,
Fixed Term Employees (Prevention of Less Favourable Treatment) Regulations 2002, Agency Workers
Regulations 2010 and where relevant, the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Earnings) Regulations. The
Council has sought to ensure that there is no pay discrimination within its pay structures and that pay
differentials can be objectively justified primarily through the use of an equality proofed job evaluation
mechanism which directly relates basic pay to the requirements, demands and responsibilities of each job role.

A full impact assessment (second stage) is required

Reasons for this conclusion




€qTusepnL

Name

Position

Signature

Date

Completed by

Signed off by

Sheenagh Rees

Head of Service/Director

:E%Q <

10t February 2020




Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



Eitem yr Agenda9

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

Personnel Committee

Report of the Assistant Chief Executive and Chief Digital
Officer

Matter for Information
Wards Affected: All
Officer Urgency Action: 0319

Re: Increase in Standby Rate

Details of the above Urgency Action the Head of Human Resources in
consultation with the requisite Members, for immediate implementation.

There is no call-in of this matter.

Tudalenl155



Mae'r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



n Cyngor Castell-nedd Port Talbot
W Neath Port Talbot Council
-~

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
Personnel Committee

December 2019

Report of the Head of Human Resources
Matter for Information

Review of Standby
1. Purpose of the Report:

The purpose of this report is to seek Member approval to increase the
rate paid to employees whilst on standby from £1.03 per session to
£1.52 per session.

2. Background:

The current rate for standby was agreed and implemented as part of
the 2010 Workforce Strategy Agreement. The rationale behind the
review at this time was to harmonise standby payments across all
services within the Council as payments associated to existing standby
arrangements differed between services and were seen as benefiting
different groups of employees. This review ensured that all employees
were treated equally for carrying out the same work for the same period
of time and as the standby payment is paid in recognition that the
employee is expected to be available to respond to a call for the
specified time period, all employees are providing the same service
and as such receive equal payments regardless of their substantive
post. The payment will only differ based on the hours required by the
different standby rotas.

Tudalenl157



3. Current Position

It has been indicated that there is currently a concern in relation to
employee participation in statutory and non - statutory stand by
services that the Authority provides. At present an employee’s
participation on a stand - by rota is on a voluntary basis and they are
able to withdraw from the relevant rota by providing 14 days’ notice to
ensure that sufficient time is available to put a suitable replacement in
place. Concern received from Service Managers relates to statutory
services being placed in a vulnerable position due to a lack of
employee participation due to the current rate of payment for stand by
remaining static since the review of 2010. Where there is a potential
for employees to withdraw from the stand by rota, this would put
additional pressure on employees who are prepared to participate, in
that the frequency would be increased. At present there are no
contractual arrangements in place with existing employees to
participate with stand by duties.

4. Financial Appraisal

The cost of Stand by for 2018/19 inclusive of pay/national insurance
and pension contributions totalled £257,000. The projected increase
as set out in this report to £1.52 per hour is estimated to cost an
additional £174,000. £151,000 of this is paid by the Council, with
£23,000 funded by Welsh Government to SWTRA.

It is proposed that this increased amount is funded by the additional
budget provision in 2020/21.

5. Integrated Impact Assessment

A first stage impact assessment has been undertaken to assist the
Council in discharging its legislative duties (under the Equality Act, the
Welsh Language Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015, the Well-being

Tudalenl158



10.

of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the Environment (Wales)
Act 2016. The first stage assessment, attached at appendix 1 has
indicated that a more in-depth assessment is not required. A summary
is included below:

“A full impact is not required as there is no impact on any protected
group. It also has no negative impact on bio-diversity or the Welsh
Language’.

Valleys Communities Impacts:
No implications.
Workforce Impacts

This proposal impacts on all employees of the Council who are
required to participate on a standby rota. This proposal will have a
positive impact as the rate of standby is increasing.

Legal Impacts

No implications.

Risk Management Impacts:

This proposal reduces the risk of services not being able to provide
services 24/7, particularly during the winter gritting period. By
increasing the rate for standby, the agreement made with the Trade
Unions provides for Service areas to determine when a new post is
created or a post becomes vacant whether there is a need for standby
to be contractual for this post. For existing employees, where there is
a business case to do so, standby is made contractual to ensure the
resilience of the services. Individual business cases will be developed
in consultation with the trade unions, as required.

Consultation:

There is no requirement for external consultation on this item.
However, full consultation has taken place with the joint trade unions

Tudalen159



11.

12.

13.

14.

at the Local Government Services Forum and they have AGREED the
proposal, a signed copy of which is attached as Appendix 1.

Recommendations

it is RECOMMENDED that Members APPROVE the increase in the
rate paid to employees whilst on standby from £1.03 per session to
£1.52 per session.

FOR DECISION.
Appendices

Appendix 1 — Signed Agreement between Neath Port Talbot Council
and local recognised trade unions under the National Joint Council for
Local Government Services (“Green Book”).

List of Background Papers

None
Officer Contact
Sheenagh Rees, Head of Human Resources. Email:

s.rees5@npt.gov.uk. Tel: 01639 763315

Tudalen160



(b)
(c)

Collective Agreement
Principles

The principles under which this collective agreement have been negotiated and
agreed are summarised below in the form of joint commitments:-

To ensure resilience in standby for statutory and non-statutory services
To monitor the agreement to ensure it remains fit for purpose

There will be no variation from this or earlier local collective agreements without
proper discussion and negotiation with the recognised trade unions

Parties to the Agreement

The parties to this collective agreement are Neath Port Talbot County Borough
Council and the recognised trade unions, UNISON, GMB and UNITE

Employees covered by the agreement

The employees covered by the agreement are those employed under the NJC for
Local Government Services, National Agreement of Pay and Conditions of Service
(Green Book).

The effect of the Collective Agreement

The contract of employment of each employee covered by this agreement has a
clause (contained within the Statement of Particulars of Employment) that in
simple terms says “any amendments to your terms and conditions will be notified
to you by giving appropriate notice, or by collective agreement through recognised
trade unions”.

The parties to this Agreement intend that the revised standby rate to £1.52 per
hour will be incorporated into the employees’ terms and conditions of
employment by virtue of this clause from 1st December 2019.

Implementation

The implementation date for the payment of the revised standby rate of £1.52 per
hour is 1st December 2019.

Service areas will determine when a new post is created or a post becomes vacant
whether there is a need for standby to be contractual for this post. If thereisa
need for contractual standby, this will be included in the recruitment
documentation and the contract of employment.

The implementation of the change to the contractual position whereby standby
becomes contractual for existing employees, will be following a robust Business

1|Page

Tudalenl161



Case being provided by the service manager. Following this the contractual
change will be made in line with the Council’s Management of Change in
Partnership Policy and Procedure.

6. Commencement and Duration

The provisions of this Agreement will have effect from 1st December 2019.
78 Review

This collective agreement can be reviewed by either party by giving one month’s
notice and a reasonable explanation for the need for the review.

Signed on behalf of the joint trade ynions:

£ S 1279

Date:

On behalf of the Council
(Do CKQ&,@ AN )&
HEAD OF HUMAN RESOURCES Date:

2|Page

Tudalen162



*AJIUNWIWIOD JOPIM SY) JO JE]S ‘S1asn 80IAI8S ale Asy) Jaylaym ‘sosusjoeleyd pajosjold aleys
oym a|jdoad uo aq pjnoo a3y} joedwi Jeym Inoge Uiyl noA o} s|ge|ieAe si Jey} ejep pue uoijelulojul ajeudoidde pue yuensias buisn ¢

‘a|diounid juawdojaaap ajqeuleisns
— g uonsany) o} ob ‘ Ajuo ssad0.d anlelIs|UILPE [BUISIU|, O} SBA JO AJUNWILLIOD JSPIM JO Jje]S ‘S9SN 80IAISS 0) ON JSMSUE noA J|
Juswissasse ay} Jo abe)s Isui) Y} YlIm anunuod AHUNWILOD JSPIM IO JE)S ‘'SIOSN S0IAISS O} SIA Jamsue noA J|

‘anneniul sy Aq pejoaye a4 ||Im oym Ajuspj g

"aAIERIUL BY) Joj AJjIqisuodsal Sey S)elojoallp Pue eale 821AI8S Ydlym Ajjusp)
‘aAneNIul 3y} Jo Alewiwns pue uoljduosep e apinold ‘|

(s1a1e0 1SISSE J0/pUE asuapuadspul ajowold jey} ssaljod ul

sabueyo ‘Buiag-|jom [ein)nd Ul jsisse o} saolAIes 1oy Buipuny ‘sjdwexa 104) ¢osiom Buipeb sbuly) juanaid aaneljiul 8y} ssop
JUSIXS JeyMm 0 /Bulag-||om [BINYND PUE [EJUSWUOIIAUD ‘|eID0S ‘OILIoU099 JO Juswaroidwl Sy 0} Sjejds SAnenIul sy} seog  »

‘SOOI HSI 1B S90IAIas asoy) ind Jo sadinas abenbue| ysiopn oyioads Buisod ‘eale uiepyao

e oyjwoy) Buirow siayeads Ysiap JO Jaquunu sy} eseasdul ‘ajdwexa Jod) ¢Alqeinoae;) ssa| pajeal 8q o} Ajayl| si abenbue)
ay} a1ayM 10 pajoaye aq o} Ajoyy ale abenbue| ysjapa 8yl asn o} seiunpoddo s1aym saduelsul 0) sjejal saleniul 3yl ssoq ¢

‘(ejdoad pa|qgesip 1o} saniunuoddo
Juswynioal Buiseaour ‘sjdwexs Jo4) ¢sewoaino Buiroidwi Jo ‘senenbaul Buionpal 1oy [epuajod weoyubis e a1vyy s|

(sjooyss ul BuiAjing o1qoydowoy Jo jsioes ‘deb Aed Jopuab ayj ‘podsuel; oljgnd 0} ssedde s,a|doad

pajqesip ‘pasu aied Jejnoied Yum S|ENPIAIPUL JO 80USJOIA [enxas/adel Jo SWiIoIA a1e oym d|doad }sISSe 0} S3DIAISS 10} Buipuny
‘ajdwexa 104) ¢ pasies ‘aq o} Ajay| ale Jo ‘usaq aney sanssi Ayjenbs Juepodwi a1aym eale ue 0} Sjejal sAleniul 8y} ssoqg ¢

:Buimoyjo} 8y} 0} psebal aney jsnw noA dajs )suiy 8y} Buns|dwiod Usyp

"Wy} UO J0ay8 8y} Jo souesiiubis ay) osje Jnq ‘pajoaye s1asn soinas/s|doad Jo Jaquinu ay} uo Ajuo Jou puadap [|IM SouBASjOY

‘(obeys

puooas ayy) sisAjeue yidep-ul a10w B SyeLapuUN 0} pasu ay) suluLdlap djay 0} JUSWSsasse Joys e jno Aled o} si abels isiiy ay |
-aBua|jeyd |ebs| 01 uado aqg Ajsjewiyn pjnod JUSLISSISSE 1991100Ul UB (Buijiom

Jo sAem anl ayy) a|diound Juswdojorap a|geulelsns ayj JUNOJJ. Ojul uaxel sey [esodold ay) Moy Jo uoljeniens Ue Se ||9M se
abenbue| ysjopn oyl pue saljijenba 0} aoueAajal Apjuspl o} Juawssasse joedw abejs 1siiy e obrapun saAlenul ||e Jey} [eluassa si |

3be]g 3Sii] - Juolssossy joedul]

Tudalen163



[
asiom Buyab 1o Huinooo swajqoid Juanaid |Im SAeIIUl BY} MOY - UOIJUDARIG o
‘SUONNJOS djgeule)sns paleys pulj 0} suolesiuebio/sadiAIas JaYJ0o YlIM paYIOM SABY M MOY - uoljeloqejjo) e
aAieiul ayy Buidojanap ul paajoaul usaq aAey ajdoad Moy - JUBWIAA|OAU| e
saAoalgo Bulagem Jno uodn sjoedwi aAljeniul 8y} moy - uopjelbaju] e
a|jdoad jo Buiag-jjam wuis)} Buo| sy} spoddns aaneiiul ay) moy - wad) Buo e

:Bujiom Jo sAem G 8y} O} uonje|al Ul SAleRiul 8U) JO S|Ielap SAID

"GL0Z 10V suonelauas) ainind jo buieq
-lII8M @Y1 JO 9/ U0N9aS 8yl Yum aoueplodde ul ajdiouud JuswdojaAap ajqeulelsns ay) padselquia Sey aAljeliul aY} Moy JSPISU0) *§

‘¥ 9 ¢ suonsanb yjoq i yoedw| ybiH, se pasuobajed aq pjnoys Mouyj },uo(, UOIIEIIHSSE|D By |
"¢ uonsany Ul se awes ay} ale sjoedw Jo suoniuya(

‘ysijbug ueys A|lgeinone} ssaj ou abenbue| ay) buneal; ul pue abenbue| ys|opn 8y} asn
0} saiiunuoddo uo aq pinoo a1ay) jJoedwi Jeym Jnoge YuIyj ‘S|ge|ieAe Si Jey) elep pue uonewlojul ajeudosdde pue jueasjal buisn ¢

"uoISIoap JNoA 0} BuIwoD Ul ‘pasn NOA aoUSpPIAS JeYM S)ediIpul pue ‘suoseal apiAoid 3snd NOA

umouun si 1oeduwi jenuajod ay) - mouy Juo(q e

Aem |jews e ul aAneul 8y}l AQ pajoaye aq 0] Ajayi| - MO e
Aem awos ul pajosaye aq 0} A|9xi| - WNIPS e

anenul ayy Aq psjoage Alybiy aq o} Al — ybiH e

:(anjebau 1o aayisod Jayye) sypedw Jo suouyaq

sqol Jo ssoj
suonesljdw jeloueuly
AuAnisuas [einyno
99IAI9S J2WO0ISND
Ajiqissaooe

sanss| pyodsuel

:apnjoul Japisuod 0} sbuiyl swog

Tudalenl164



10}0811(]/21AM9S JO pesH e Aq Yo paubis aq jsnw }i Jobeuew ajgejunoooe ue Aq paiajdwod si juswssasse abels 1s1l sy} SJaUYM
‘spoday aapIwWo) Augniog /pieog 1auigenaauiged (e 1oy Jaded punoibyoeq e se papnioul 8q jsnw juswssasse abejs Isil) v

‘AjereIpawiwl psliels ag 0} pasu ||Im siy) pue ps)o|dwod aq 0} pasu
1M Juswssasse ay) Jo abejs puodss ay) palinbai si sisAjeue yydep-ul s1ow e Jey} Se)edIpul Juswssasse au} Jo abejs sl au) SISYM

‘papn|oul aq os|e jsnw ajdiouiid Juswdojaasp ajgeulelsns ay) padeiquia sey aAlelliul 9yl Moy 8y} jo Alewwns e uoljippe u|

"usAIb aq 1shw UOISIOap SIY) 1B paAlLIe aAeY NOA moy Jo uoljeue|dxa
ue pue Juswssasse ay} Jo abe)s 1suiy ay) Uo paseq (Payol} XOg JUeAS|al Y} pue) pajosies aq jsnw juswsale)s sjeldoidde jsow ayl 9

Tudalen165



UOIIBJUBLIO |ENX3S
X9g

j8119g/uoibllay

aoey
Anuisiep/Aoueubalid
diysisuped [In1D/ebeluep
Juswubisseay Jopusr)
Angesiq

aby

XXX XXX X | X[ X

cyoedwi yiybiw | YN/H | mouy | 9|q1B1BaN
MOH/(9ouapiAaa Buipn|oul) uoisioap Jnok 10j suosedy | Joedw] | juoq JSUON | ON | S®OA

:119} Jo asneodaq ajdoad uo joedwi aaneniul ay) seoq ‘¢

X Ajuo ssaoo.d aAnessiulwpe |eulsiu]

X AjJlunwiwos JapIpA
X HEeIS

X slasn 92IAI8g
ON SaA

:}98)je aAneIUI Y} S90Q T

IIV :9)eloyoadig

‘sanp Aqpue)s ayeuspun oym saaskojdwg yoog usalo), ||y :ealy 3JIAI0S

-Inoy Jad ZG'L3 0} a)el asealoul 03 Aqpuels Jo MaIAdYy :Alewwns pue uondliosap aAneniu|

aAneRIul 3y} Jo sjie3ad ‘L

abe}g 1Si14 - JUBWISSaSSY joedul]

Tudalen166



"0} ‘uollelns|je

pooy} ‘Ayjenb Jie se yons
‘JUSLLIUOIIAUS JapIM BU}
X Jo uoiosjoud Buipoddns
‘9’| ‘swa)sAs0o9
JO aoual|isal
ayj sjowoid o]

As1aAIpoIq @2UBYUD
X pue urejurew o

cyoedut 31 3yBiw moH | /IN/H | mowy | 3jqiblIBaN
| (@2uapiaa Buipnjaul) uoisioap Jnok 10} suoseay joeduwy | j.uoQq JSUON | ON | S9A

:A)s1aAIpoiq uo 3oedwi aAneniul 8y} s8oq °§

ysijbug uey) Ajgeinoney
sso| ou abenbue|
X Us|ap 2y} buneal |

abenbue|

YS9 dU1 @sh 0}
X saijiunuoddo s sjdoad

yoeduwi ) ybiw MoH | 1/IN/H | mouy a|qib1j6aN
| (pasn asuapiae Buipnjoul) uoisioap Jnok 1oj suoseady | Joedu] | j.uog JOUON | ON | S9A

:uo joedwi sAeRIul 3Y) se0q 'V

Tudalenl167




‘soaho|dwa 10} awoono aajpisod

asiom
Buimeb 1o Bulnooo swajgqold Jusaaid

e aq |m Agpueys Buijepapun sashojdwa asoy) Jo} 8jel Ul 9sealoul ay | X [I'M BAIlBIIUI BYl MOY - UOIJUdAdI

SUOIIN|OS 9|geuUIBISNS paleys puly

_ "asealoul 3y} pawLIoUI S [1IoUno) Jayjo 0] suoljesiueblo/saoIAIas 18Yjo Ulim

| WO} SJBI JBABMOH ‘M3IA3l AD1j0d |I2Un0) jog|e] HOd YlesN e S! siul — /N X | payJom aney am Moy - uoljeloqe||od

'610¢ 13quisds(

4G UO WNI0H S32IAI9S JUSWIUIAA0Y) [e007 |eloads e Je |esodoid ay) paaibe aAljeijuI

SuoluM apel] Juior ay} pue Agpue)s Jo MalAaL 8y} 0} uolje|as ul sbuijesw ay) Buidojaaap ul panjoAul ussq

[|e Ul PSAJOAUI USa( Sey suoiun apel) juiol ay) wol) aaijeuasaidal X aney ajdoad Moy - JUSWAA|OAU|

| saAnoalqo

"Jow ale saAIoalgqo Buiaqgjiem 1no uodn sjoeduwil

Buiaq|iem ay} Bulinsua o} pie ue aq |[Im sabueys Adjjod ay] "aaoqe sy X aAlleniul ayy moy - uonesbaju|

ajdoad

Buisealoul si ajel ay) se Aqpuels ayeuspun oym saakojdwa Jo Bulag-|jlam wua} buo| sy} spoddns

as0y} UO 108y4o anljisod e aAey ||Im AQpue)s o} a)el 8y} ul 8sealdul ay | X aAlleniul sy} moy - wady buon
s|iejaqg ON | S9A

:(Bunjiom jo sAem g) ajdioulid Juswdojaaap ajqeurelsns ay) aseiquia aAlenIul 3y) svoq 9

Tudalen168



L

6102/CLIS

Jabeuepy yH jediduld sunjdoH aueiqg Aq pajodwion

ejeq

ainjeubis

uonisod aweN

UOISN|OUOD SIY} 10} SUOSEDY

paiinbai si (abe}s puooas) Juswssasse Joedwl N}y

"abenbue ys|opn ay) Jo Alisiaaip-oiq uo Joedw aaijebau ou sey [esodoud siy |

-dnoib pejosjold Aue uo Joedwi ou si a1ay} se palinbai jou si pedwl (N} y

UOISN[OUOD SIY) J0} SUOSEDY

palinbal jou si (ebejs puooas) Juswssasse joedwl ||N}

:(syeridoudde se yo13) Juswissasse anoge Uo paseq - uopele|aaq 2L

Tudalen169



@g/%v 10)0811(]/991MI8S 10 pesH M\ug }gw Aq yo paubig

[ wifTio

Tudalenl170




Eitem yr Agendalz

Yn sgil paragraff(au) 15 yn Rhan 4 Atodlen 12A% Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972

Document is Restricted

Tudalenl1l71



Mae'r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



Eitem yr Agendals

Yn sgil paragraff(au) 12, 13 yn Rhan 4 Atodlen 12A% Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972

Document is Restricted

Tudalenl177



Mae'r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



Yn sgil paragraff(au) 12, 13 yn Rhan 4 Atodlen 12A% Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972

Document is Restricted

Tudalen181



Mae'r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



	Agenda
	2 Rhagarweiniad i bolisi Gofalwr
	Carers Policy Appendix 1
	Carers Policy IIA

	3 Rhaglenni Prentisiaid a Phrofiad Gwaith yng Nghyngor Castell-nedd Port Talbot
	4 Cofrestru Gweithwyr Gofal Cartref
	Domiciliary Care Workers Registration IIA

	5 Cyflwyno Cynllun Cyfweliadau Gwarantedig ar gyfer Cyn-filwyr y Lluoedd Arfog
	Guaranteed Interview Scheme for Veterans Appendix 1
	Guaranteed Interview Scheme for Veterans of the Armed Forces IIA

	6 Trefniadau'r Nadolig a'r Flwyddyn Newydd 2020/21
	Christmas and New Year Holidays 2020 2021 IIA

	7 Adroddiad Gwybodaeth am y Gweithlu
	WORKFORCE INFORMATION REPORT APPENDIX 1

	8 Datganiad Polisi Tâl 2020/2021
	PAY POLICY STATEMENT APPENDIX 1
	Pay Policy Statement Integrated Impact Assessment

	9 Cam Gweithredu Brys: Cynnydd yn y Cyfradd Wrth Gefn
	Personnel Committe Report
	Signed Collective Agreement
	Impact Assessment

	12 Trafodaethau Cyflog Cenedlaethol
	13 Tâl Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Plant a Phobl Ifanc
	IIA Head of CYPS signed


